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‘TO THE"‘UN!THOLDERS OF APF ENERGY TRUST;

o We have audrted the consohdated balance sheets of APF Energy Trust as at December 31 2002 and 2001 and
" the consolidated statements of operations and accumulated earnings; : cash flows and cash distributions and
 accumulated cash drstnbutrons for the years. then ended These financial statements are the responsibility of
_the. Trust's management Our respons1b1hty isto express an opxmon on these ﬁnanc1a1 statements based on
. four audrts ‘- < : B

-We conducted our audats in accordance w1th Canadmn generally accepted audrtmg standards Those
standards tequire that we plan and ‘perform an audit to obtain reasonable assurarice whether the financial
statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on-a test basis, evidence
‘supporting the amounts and disclosures. in the financial statements, Ani audit also includes ‘assessing the
accounting principles used and 51gn1ﬁcant esnmates made by manaoement as well as evaluatmg the overally :

ﬁnancral statement presentanon '

_position of the Truist as at December-31; 2 el st
for the years. then ended in accordance wrth Canadxan

1sNdl ADHINIS IdVY

'er ly. accepted accountmg prmcrple

Chartered Accountants . . N
Calgary, Alberta ' _?
April 2, 2003 >
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CAsat Decervnberv31-:

*ASSETS
" Current assets
‘Cash

' Accountsr eivable

" AOther currerit assets

o Sxte restoranon fund
.. Goodwill (note7)
Property plant and‘uy ulpmentb(not 5):

"Current hablhtles

.VBILITIES

E 'UN[THOLDERS EQUITY , T
s -Umtholders mvestment account (note 10}~ _‘ o e
E Accumu.lated earmngs e

.,'f__‘.,ACcumulated cash dlstnbutlons s

ENERGY TRUST

APF

‘Contingencies fandi,éémmitments _(n’oté:;AG)‘ P e

9,079,202

2,376,422

S 1475761 :
260,526,682

14,398,533
. 29 389 -

183 748 484 L

198,176,406

297,626,901

et 16,943,193

: 3)923,164 .
© 3,564,801 -

10,024,004
- 1,087,685
2,337,582

24,431,248

139,624,685
‘ ,',88‘,999,000
6,227,096

13,449,271
29,430,306
59,250,000

3,637,539

158,283,029 . .. .

105,767,116 el

- 35,588,861
(110,650,149}

214405160

14i.068,87o

24,224,117 -

(72,883.697)

_139.343.872

‘92,409,290

b R e

297,626,901 " -

Steven Cloutler
Dlrector W

198,176.406

02001




‘(note Ifj) o

' 'Management fee (note 13)
- Interest on'long- term debt ‘ e
o ..Deplenon and amortization
.+ Site'restoration S e
‘ Capltal and other taxes =

: [ntemahzanon of management contract (note 8) .

lncome before income taxes and 1 mmonty mter&st” '

. Recovery of future i mcome taxes (note 12) i
Income before minority interest .
Mmonty 1nterest (note 13) S

. Net income.. :

' Accumu.lated eammgs = Begmmng of year
Accumulated earnings —End of year
»Net income’ per unit - Basm and dlluted

C ONSOLIDATED; STATEMENTS“OF OPERATIONS AND

2001

038 666

13,363,789)

1,885, 657

01200,479 "A/i n
2,087,066 1
1,901,296 -

19778736
1,292,645 -

‘>6 560 534

13; 086 271
“..3:360,236

1,503,291
13,047,933

7;297;3251 :

43,241,414

. (7.133:279)

' 13,319,120

‘11,768 3 -

. 6080,453

S 24,224,117
- 35,588,861 ' 24,224,117
0.35 144

1SNYtL ADHINGTG dd4dV
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ENERGY TRUST

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS -
For the yéars ended December 31 i “z'ol‘c‘n~ R
Cash'prqvi'ded. by SR
Operatmg actm SRR e A
" Net income for theyear 1364744 S0 18,143,664 . o
Items not affectmg cash SR o I
, ',_Depletxon and. amo” zatio 30,200,479 19,778,736
' Minority mterest ‘ 403,369 348,084
’ Future income taxe - 733279) T (5.173,528) - -
: ‘Intemahzatxon of 7,036,629 -
2,087,066 1,292,645
- {170,611 (395,611)
MLt ity 43788397 33,994,890
Net change in,non- cash workmg cap1ta1 1te s S T :
Accounts recelvable el (7.993.847) - 339,583
Other ‘current assets . L 327.747) (992,615)
,Accounts payable and accrued hablhtxes T o 6,536,962 (2,412,295)
‘to related party/APF Management ; . (1,087 685) E " 401,697
asl dlstnbutlon ‘payable” 1,227,309 766,923
7 {1,645,008) - {1,896,707)
7 (754.389) (29.389) ,
(37.766,452) _(37310.851) -
3,622,548 (5,242,057)
Investmg actmtles : ‘
~Purchase of Alliance Energy Inc L= (38,866,268)
: e * Kinwest Acqu151t10n , : '(17'361 190) .. -
_ Additions to. property, plant and equlpment 20, 978, 686) 16,224,837)
"'P'urchase of 011 and natural gas propertles (28,574,217) " (47,569.698)
: 1o 569 331 6,903,199
(560 244) 3,957,190
(56,905,006} . (01,800,414)
* 432,250,016 78,394,000
e 553,982 990,492
(1,860,678)-. {5,08¢,804)
- 21,650,000 25,064.445
© {403:369) (348,984)
52,189,051 . 99,010,149
o {1,092,509). 1,976,678
. 2,042,909 T 66,231
9507402 2,042,909




_TS OF CASH D|STRIBUTIONS

192,344,559 : §§ 931?,666
1,676,25 i
:+(7,802,341)
-86,218:475

13,086,271
2,893,732

1,503,291
3,047.933
'425,000 . .

U L172,302

( j’Debt service charg ncluding interest and Apnncxpal),u, o
" ““Site restoration fund conmbutmn
- Capital and other taxes . (
: Cap1tal expendxtures funded from cash flow

i 22‘1'.2862'9’ S
41667520
41,250,845 = .
7.163,150) .

" Income sub]ect to the Royalty SR Eee
99% of income sub]ect to the Royalty

LSNyYl ADHINID JddV

- Crown charges net of ‘Alberta’ Royalty Tax Credi o

' General and adrmrustratlve costs of the Trust 1'(466 504},

Co ' 0 33,621, 182-;;
/Repayment of capltal 3,689,669 ::

.Cash distributed and avauéule /to be dlstnbuted
Cash distributed to date /... "

6 . , 37310851 .
34 201,)61._ - : - 34,973.269

‘Cash distribution payable -~ Lo S 3,564,801 2,337,582 N
Actual cash dlstnbutlon dedared per unit R 181 T s 98 : S
Opemng accumulated cash dlstrlbuuons “72, 883 697 350572 846 : o
Distribution declared and paid o Li3gzong6r. 34,973, 269 ;
Distribution declared and payable .- g 3,564,801 U 2339,582 TS
Closmg accumulated cash dlstrnbutxons e AT n 110,650,149 0 92,883,697 L C

L8003
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N OT ES TO
‘December 31, aoozan

INOTE 1
The Trust i
beneficiarie

“APF Energy

| Energy") : L
orated and or nized for th purpose of acqumng developmg, explomng and dlsposmg of R

b APF Energy mited Partnerslup ("LP") : ' Lo
‘ irpose of vau ing, developm exploiting and dlsposmg of oil and natural gas e

: statements include the account’ of the Trust, Energy and the LP and are
fe ed to as "APF". Although' there is no legal ownership’ between these entities, Energy and the LP
'effectxvely transfer all of the economic beneﬁts of their operations to the Trust. The

2002 ANNUAL REPORT

. ' cha gainst earnings,- 3 d enhancements, whlch extend the economic life of the property,
... plant'and equipment are capltallzed ‘No general and administrative costs have been capitalized.
"Gams and losses are not. recoomzed upon d1$p031t10n of oxl and natural gas properties: unless such a’

APE places’ a lumt the aggrega 'cost of capltal assets wlnch may be carried forward for amortization . . -
against revenues of future- perigds {the "cellmg testr). The- ceiling test is a’cCost recovery test whereby the @0~
capitalized costs Tless accumulated depletion, site restoration and future taxes are limited to an amount equal < - oo
to. estimated undascounted future net reveriues from proven reserves based on year end prices, plus the

ummpatred costs of non- producmg properties less estimated future general and administrative expenses,

site’restoration costs, management fees, ﬁnancmg costs and income takes related to Energy that are not

"passed onto ‘the Trust.:Future disttibutions to:Unitholders whether or not they are required under the Trust -

Indéntiire’ are;not’ con51der ‘as: future. ﬁnancmg costs; for purposes of the ceiling test. Costs and prices at

the balance sheet dates:are used.. Any costs. amed on the balance sheet in excess of the cexlmg test amount

ARPF ENERGY TRUST

‘epletlon and amo zat1 : o

.- The’provision: for deplenon and amortlzanon of Oll and natural gas assets mdud.mg tangible equipment is
calculated usmg the 't_-of productlon method based on the estnnated workmg interest share of proven reserves

i eserves are: converted t equlvalent units'on the basis of a apprommate relative energy content.

46 |




abilities’ from the Fair value, to: deterrrune the tmphed fair valueof goodwﬂl and comparing that
the book Value Oof APF’S goodw1ll Any excess of the book value of goodwﬂl over the implied fair

”"]omt ventures S
vSubstanttally all 011 and natural gas productxon and explonauon actmttes are condu ed 1omtly with others.

" The Trust has apphed the. treasury stock method to determme the dllutwe effect’of stock opt:ons and other
dilutivé instruments. Under t_he treasury stock method, only ‘in-the money"~«d11ut1ve 1nstrurnents tmpact the
“diluted calculations. ¢

- The per unit income calculattons are based on the welghted average number of unlts outstandmg during the

' period. (2002 - 20,470,210 units; 2001 — 12,578,032 units). The dilutive per unit calculations were based on

-‘additional mcremental units of - 57,569 from the mcentwe plans for a total of 20 527 779 (2001 - 29,928 and

.12 607 960 units respectwely) ' i .

“Cash dlstrtbutlons declared per unit amount is based on actual dlStI’ll)uthI’l for units outstanding at the time

“of declaratlon :

R Hedgmg

its exposure to fluctuations in commodity prices, foreign exchange rates and interest rates. Gains and- losses
“relating to these transactions are deferred and recognized in the financial statement category © which the
hedge relates at the time the underlymg commodtty is sold or when the posmons are settled.”

Cash dlstnbutlons o S e
*'7 7 Cashdistributions are calculated on an accrual baS1s and ate patd to th :
' avaﬂable for d1stnbut10n . S ‘

Trust unit-based compensatlon plan ;
The Trust has a fixed Trust Unit option plan wlfnc

is: descnbed

- - paid by employees on exercise of Trust Unit opuons or purchase of Trust Units is credited to Umtholders
mvestment account, R g S :

Income taxes i '

The Trust is an inter vivos trust for income fax purposes. As such the Trust is taxable onany taxable income

which is not allocated to the Unitholders. The Trust intends to aliocate all taxable income to  Unitholders.
" Should the trust.incur any income taxes, the funds available for distribution will be reduced accordmgly
" _ Provision for income taxes‘is recorded in Energy at applicable statutory rates. Provision for income taxes is

recorded in Energy using the liability method of accounting whereby the future income tax effect of any, E

dtfference between the accountmg and income tax basts of an asset or habtltty is booked.

“ Management estimates.

adjustments based on future occurrences. The. most significant’estimates relate to depletion, amortization -

and ceiling test calculations for capital assets including future abandonment habthues as. they aré based on
engmeenng reserve estimates and esumated future costs. - vl -

j NoTE 3 CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING POLICY R T P
V.Effectwe January 1, zooz APF adopted the recommendanons of ‘the Canadlan Instltute of Chartered

- Accountants ("CICA") on accounting for stock-based compensatlon wlnch apply to rights granted on or after-

January 1, 2002. APF does not record any compensanon cost.on grants to employees.and directors.
The exercise price of the rights granted under APF's rights plan may ‘be:reduced in future periods-in

accordance with the terms of the nghts plan. The amount of the reduction. cannot be reasonably estimated

" as it depends upon a ‘number of factors including, but not lumted to,future. prices received on the sale of oil

and natural gas, future ‘production’ of oil and natural gas, ‘determination. of amounts to be withheld from

" futtire” distributionis ‘to -fund- capttal expendltures and the purchase and sale’ of natural gas properties.
Therefore it is not pOSSIble to determme 4 fair value for the rights granted under the rights plan.

As it is ot possible to' determine. the fair value of rights granted | under

. proforma dlsclosure purposes has been determmed based on the' XCESS of ,

The Trust uses financial mstruments and physmal dehvery commodnty contracts from time to time to reduce

n'ttholders ‘based uponfunds

note 11. No compensauon expense is
recognized for this plan when Trust Units or ‘Trust Unit options are issued to employees Any Consideration”

The ¢onsolidated financial statements mclude certain management esumates that may requtte accounting 2

& plan compensatton cost for o
it nce over. the exerc1se price -7

1sNgl A9Hd3IND JddV
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estimated cost associa
Effective January 1; 2

assumed to be used to purc g cremental umts are s N
: mcluded in the deno inator. of the daluted earmngs per unit: calculatlon The 1mpact of the adopnon of the "~ ¢

- The\ Royalty is graii
-t0 99% of Royal
to take its'share* of produ

o Management Fees), G&A and tax '('mcludmc income taxes) or other applicable charces payable by Energy
less any advances made pursuant to.the- credit facilities of Energy to fund the payment of such costs and
charoes whrch 1ncluded changes to the workxng capltal reserve and wh1ch after July 1, 1998 ‘provides for'a

Vthe amountreceived by. Energy in respect of the sale of its interest in all Petroleum Substances produced
om.the: Propertxes, together with net proﬁt_or loss: _from commodxty pnce swaps {but not mcludmg

2002 ANNUAL REPORT

d e calculated:-with reference to production from the
Propemes mcludmg, ‘without hmltatlon,ﬂhcr, C 'emdmg royaltles and lessors' royalties, but excepting
Crown Royalties and other apphcable charges; - B
L) capltal expendltures intended to improve or maintain productxon from the Properties, (but not to

. production fromi or ownershxp of the Properties. Energy.and the LP are at all times entitled to set off their
*Tight to be so reimbursed against its obligation to pay the Royalty. ,
' Energy and the LP use Other:Revenues to pay ' Management Fees, purchase Permltted Investments, pay for
Addmonal Properties, Replacement Properties ‘and capltal costs, for net losses, if any, from currency swaps
borrowing for such purposes.

t: : acquire Additional Properties or Replacement Properties), in excess of amounts borrowed or designated
= . as Deferred Purchase Obhgatrons in respect thereof, but notin excess of 10% of the annual net cash flow
o o from the Properties; = -
= 2+d) _ net contributions to Energy s Site Restoration Fund and the’ Cash Reserve;

: €}~ costs otherwise reimbursed by proceeds of business interruption, property damage and third party
a : liability insurance less any such proceeds;
T o sl ) costs of generating Other Revenues;and
g ' . "::;g) ‘amounts, reqmred to:be paid to the Trustee pursuant 1o the Trust Indenture, including, without
s :-: - limitation, amounts to be paid pursuant to indemnification provisions. -
W ' Energy and the LP are requxred to pay, to the Trust on each Cash Distribution Date, 99% of Royalty Income
0 ‘received by Energy and the LP. from the Properties for the period ending on the last day of the month
oot unmedlately preceding the Cash Distribution Date. S
< -’ . The. Trust pays.Energy: and the LP99% of the ‘Crown Royalhes ‘and other Crown charges in respect of

2002 2001
i $ 5
- 340, 188 1499 233,209,822
(79.661817) (49.461,338) - -
260,526,682 183,748,484 -

48 ror




v)

‘b)

1 abandonment costs.
ration fund durmg the yeat totalled, $9z,.ooo +:$425,000) and have
latmg the mcome sub]ect to the royalty Expendrtures for 51te restoratlon activities in

meest Energy Inc. , : :
Effectwe May 30, 2002, Energy acqurred all of the 1ssued and ov.tstandmg shares of two private

"Kinwest Acquxsr'aon") The transachon has been accotisited for as @ busmess acqulsltlon Wltl'l the -

al]ocatron of the purchase pnce and consrderatlon pznd as follows

2002
Net assets acqmred at asmgned values LT
Bank overdraft , (3,045,701}

.. Other working capltal 1,641,226 .
Property, plant and equlpment ' 63,483,600
Goodwill -7 £AT475, 761
Debt assumed (7.100,000)

Site restoration lrabrhty (673,102) -

Future i 1ncome taxes (15.410,013)

Total net assets acqulred © 50,37LI71

Cash LT L IR , 13,042,044
) Trust units 1ssued (3. 38) 510 trust umts) o -36,055,682.
\Acquxsmon cost = due to related party S : : : 838,642

Acquisition costs : T LT s T 434,803
- Total cons_lderatxon o T ‘ ERA S 50,371,171

Alliance Energy Inc, =

Effective - April 11, 2001, Energy acqutred all “of the outstandmc shares of Alhance Energy Inc.
" (*Alliance"). In aggregate the purchase price was satxsﬁed by the payment of $35 3 million in ¢ash, the .

issuance by the Trust of 0.9 million Trust Umts at a deemed prrce of $Jo 05 per Trust Unit and the
assurnption of $8.45 million of debt. - - e

Prior to Energy entering into an- agreement {6 acquire Alhance, Alhance had agreed to acquire certain
producing propemes from an arm’s length third party The total consrderanon after ad}ustments was
$42.5 million. i i

The acquisition of Alhance, excludlng the prop

"es noted above whrch are xnduded in purchase of oil - V
and natural gas properties, were accounted for using the purchase of an asset method of accounting with
' net assets acqutred and consxderanon paxd as: follows L e W

1SNHWL ADYHINGD ddV
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. Bank overdraft »
: Wo;klpg,cap
-Capital assets

5 Trust units'issu

oo _ ed {9
“Bank financing ' - e
~ " Acquisition costs — due to related party

”Acqulsmon costs
: otalc n51derat10n

Trust Units to the shareh dev of the Manager as d

- ‘éub]ect to escrow for - 4 years, released'nas to.
o remammg Trust “Units to. be 1ssued to- non

’ -Net assets acqul asmgned values

. {1,453.135)

88 098 535.
: (8,450.000)
(29 950:852)«
(597 464)«-
46,474 203 .

35,328,536
701,143
1,383,454
46,474,203

! Manager") effecnve December 31,2002, The total cost included $9 z, mllhon to purchase the management
g the workmg apltal of the Manager and related transactlon costs. Total

L ) 2002
Net assets acqulred . B
~‘Cash'* R 418,801,
Workmg cap1tal S 629,363
Property, plant and’ equlpment 4,512,104
Future income taxes el B (1,217,644)
. lht’emalizati "n'of .‘management contractexpensed L T , 7,297,325
Total consxderatlon : o
Cash ;' v 3,923,164
8 6,337,288
f _ 679497
10,939.949

, 3, 2003 all of the ma)or condmons including
btamed by December 31, 2002. Accordmgly, the transaction

. The considerationis to be paxd through t the issue of Trust Umts is pamally sub]ect to escrow restrictions. In
“."the case of Mr.:Mattifi Hxslop, Chief’ Execuuve Ofﬁcer, 100% of the 150,526 Trust Units to be issued are
sub;ect to. escrow for- 3 years released as t one third on éach anmversary ‘date of the transaction. In the case

ing Ofﬁcer, 80% of the 125 500 Trust Umts to be 1ssued are

. (1,172,881) - -

guobrozs




" collateralized by a $125.0 million demand debentute contammg a ﬁrst fixed charge onall th vetroleum and .

- “each Unit outstandmg Each right would :allow: Umtholders in speuﬁed circumstances; to acquire, on

s

LAt Decerhber v

‘down or repald at any time-but there are no scheduled repa
: vshdmg scale tied to APF’s debt to cash flow ratio, from zmihimum- of e bank's pnme rate plus 0.125% to
. a maximum of the prime rate plus 1.5% (2001 = bank pnme plus 0.125% to 1.5%) or where available, at
'Banker's"Acceptances rates plus a stamping fee of 1.125% to 2.5% (2001~ 1.125% to 2.5%). The debt is'

. natural gas assets of APF and an ass1gnment of bo ts;and i 3. £ Decembep 31,

' On February 5, 2003, in con;uncnon with the acqulsmon of Hawk 011 Inc. (note 16}, k .
amended the credit facility to enable APF to extend the revolving penod for an additional 364 days by giving .
notice to the lenders no earlier than 186 days and no less than-go days prior to the end of the revolving -
period. If the revolving perlod is not extended, the outstanding principal will be con rted to a one-year non- -
revolving térm loan commencmg on the da medxately followmg the end of the then current revolvmg
period. During the one-year term period, A ] \ it ci [ the
“after the commencement of the one-year termvpenod “tfazthiof the outstandmg ‘principal
day thereafter. The total facility was increased to $130.0; million; with:a botrowing base on Febrt
of $130.0 million. The debt will bear interest based on a shdmg scale tied to APF’s debt to cash flow rati
from a minimum of the bank’s prime rate plus‘0.125% to a maximum of the prime rate plus 1.625%, or =~
where available, at Banker's Acceptances rates plus a stamping fee of 1.125% to 2.00%. The debt will be. T
collateralized by a $175.0 million demand debenture containing a first fixed charge on all the petroleum and. Lt
natural gas assets of APF and an ass10nment of book debts and matenal gas contracts ERE

18sNYdl ADHI3INZD ddV
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T . T >
UNlTHOLDERS’ INVESTMENT ACCOUNT : ;
. 20027 Tl 001 . C

,Umts: " Amounts - “Units - Amounts >

Balance - Beginning of year o ‘11'5','583,880 141,068,870 | 71393571 - 5770412 < o L ’:‘T]‘.
Issued to acquire Alliance’ I it L e 90L599 9,061?970 T, ULy
Issued for Kinwest Acquisition ; L 3385,;10 36,055,682 T = T S0
Issued for cash .- TR e K 1oL ¥ 665 132,250,016 © 7:430,500" 78,394,000 T
N . : ER ; v i ; __é

Cost of units issued . B I | X171 678)
Units reserved for issuance (note 8) /% " ;608;185' 6 337,288
Issued under the Trust Unit Incentive Plan - S bLagy 553 982,

22 942,417**

(5.080.804) -
12424 690492
14 405,160 15,583,880 ;1'41,068‘,8‘70

The holders of Units are entltled to vote at any meetmg of the Unitho ‘ : ‘
In 1999, the Trust created a Unitholders' Rights Plan and authorized'the 1ssuance “of o one nght in respect of

payment of an exercise price of $50.00; the number of Umts havmg-an aggregate market pnce equal to tw1ce :
the exercise pnce of the nghts o :

51
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NOTE 11 TRUST UNIT INCENTIVE RIGHTS PLAN o

Pursuant to a Trust’ Umt Incentlve Plan’ dated December I7,4 1996 and amended February 1, 1998 (the o

"Plan"), emplojees a
each option-was the
February 1, 1998 veste
increments on the s

wof the Trust ruts as of the date fthe grémt and the maximum term of each. r1ght is‘not to éxceed ten years

, down,wards/from time to txme by the amount, if any, that distributions to -

irectors’ ‘may be granted options to acquire. Units-of the Trust. The exercise pricefor v -
ét price of the Units at the time the option was granted. Optrons granted priorto -’
mmediately, while optrons ‘granted on or after February 1, 1998 vest in one-third -- :
nd t.hlrd anmversanes of their grant. The maximum term. for each grant of.

330 540 932 ‘221407 (838

The follomng table summanzes optrons 1nformatron under the Plan outstandmg at December 31, 2002!

S e We1ghted ” Welghted, :
" Number © average average " Number Werghted

Range of - voutstanding | remaining exercise  exercisable average
Exercrse prrces “aiii -7 December 31, contractuallife- . price December 31, price

R T, S oniitie00a (vears) ' - $ 2002 $
g 7.06 —-799 ' 42568 o218 a5 17,902 7.15

7 ..8:00-9.00 GoeaBaza e 125 804 17398 8.00
|1 9.01-10.00; 1832290 0 316 970 41,188 9.70
g 244,029 L 91 76.488 8.72

Dunng the year, the Trust granted 441 233 nghts (er in zoor) under the Rights Plan to employees and
. directors to purchase trust units at prlces rangmg from $9 73 to $10.80 per trust unit. Of these, 56,400 are
Sub}ect to' regulatory approval. : .
CA summary of the nghts Plan atD cember 31,

502 is as follpws.

2002

Number of = Weighted
rights average price

Trust Umt Rjghts

441,233 9.86

do02 , 2001 .
: Werghted L Weighted -
Umts average price Units - average price - ..

CE = 276723 9-94
(53 677) - gos. o {u2423) 831
e (27,834) o6z < (55,167). _ 9.61 -
; ‘)7244 029 e 903 330,540 932 "
rcrsab]e - End of year 76,488 s, 72 5,704 8. 7

©(2,500) - 9.73
: (9,400} - 973
42033 9.86

0.49
937




[ 'mcome and a retum of capital'in the year recewed

Number of ~Remaining  Number of
ad)usted' . /rights. : rights
‘at grant date exercise pnce _outstanding " exercisable

- Energy and the 1P have approxrmatelv $60 4 mllhon of unus
(3335 million = December 31, 2001) avallable to be used to offset fu
" restrictions of the Income Tax Act. i, B ;
“‘Energy had‘approximately $15.3: mtlhon in non ,pltal los 3
'+ December 31, 2001) of Which $2.1:million exptre in 2006 and the remamder through 2009.
: The Unitholders:are responsible for their own mcome taxes Dlsmbutlons are a combrnanon of taxable

zoor'
s
o margno T
C4395%
5,853,753

llncome before mcome taxes
“Statutory tax rate

Expected tax provision
Effect on income tax of
Net income of the Trust -
-Resource allowance o
" Non-deductible crown charges -
Internalization of management contract
' ‘Caprtal tax - :

LSNYL ADHINITD ddV

Provision for future income taxes

L m3a79)  (5173528)

The future tax recorded on the balance sheet results from B TR NI R
Capital assets in éxcess of tax value el ';, (e 46,282,019 35,838,224
Future tax losses that are hkely to be unhzed el L (6.657.334) {6,407,918)

39,624,685 29,430,306 .

- The Trust has §$; 5,524,073 of caprtal loss to be used agamst any caprtal gam
During 2002 there was $nil taxable income in the Trust {2001 - $nil: Rk
Distributions paid are deducted from taxable income only to the extent, needed 1o reduce taxable incomein
the Trust to zero. Generally, the distributions deducted for the Trust tax- return are taxable income to the' '
Unitholders.- : -
Taxable income of the Trust is comprised of i income from royalty, ad]usted for crown royalnes and resource- - -
allowance, less deductions for Canadian oil and natural gas property expense (COGPE) which i 15 clalmed at -

a rate of 10% on a declining balance basis-and issue costs which are'claimed at 20% per yearona straxght e

line basis. Any losses that occur in the Trust must be retained in the Trust and may be carried forward and -
deducted from taxable income for a period of seven years Th COGPE dunng 2602 and zoor resulted from*‘j
the purchase of royalty interests. : :

The amount of COGPE and i issue costs remammg in the Trust are as follow

MY NNNY

LEHOdIu

COGPE
Issue costs

53

(1) Per Trust Unit. amount is based on the actual
22, 942 417, mclusxve of units reserved for i
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- During the year, Energy
~ administrative expenses

. Manager for $850,000:" Ty
“The Manager through:] its ownershlp of 166% of the shares of APF was entitled to receive 1% of the royalty ;

“income derived from the: Properties: The 1% minority mterest is-included as an expense in the consohdated S

o .The extemal fhanagement stricture and all‘related_management acquisition and disposition fees, as Well as

i {vThe estrmated market value of. these 1nte est
e ‘that time, would be a. cost of $o.2 rmlhon; .

The Manager manage :

Manager for manage - advisory - ‘and. admrmstratlve services inclided a fee- equal to 1. .5% of Net";«v

" Production Revenue cturing fees of 1.3% on both the purchase price of acquisitions and on the net
‘proceeds of dtsposmons

";i;zlooz fees. ‘paid_.or. payable to’ Manager on Net Production Revenues were - . .
$1,976,054 (2001 ~ $1,503,291) and structuring fees were $1,021,610 (2001~ $1,552,295). Structuring fees, RO
were accounted;for s either part of the purchase pnce orasa reductton of the proceeds of dlsposrtlon of oil

and natural gas propertie

unbursed the Manager $2 294 470 (2001 = $z 247, 68x) for’ general and
‘cost recovery basis. These amounts are included in general and’
administrative expenses In addmo Energy also acqulred certain non-oil and gas busmess assets from the

statement of operations. The amounts were $403,369 for 2002 and $348,984 for 2001.-

S nght to the r% royalty were ehmrnated ce ber 3L, 2002 (see note 8).

; exposed to market rrsks resultmg from ﬂuctuatrons in commodrty pnces foreign exchange rates and
nterest rates in the normal course of operations;, Derivative instruments are used by APF to reduce its =~
xposure-to fluctuations i in commodity prices and foreign exchange rates. The fair values of these derivative
1nstruments are based'o ,estlmate of the amounts that would have been recelved or pald to settle-these -
struments prior to : k .
air "values of financial ‘instruments th 'are included in"the’ balance sheet mc]udmg ]onc—term’
bo owmgs approxunate thexr carrying; amount due'fo the short- term rnaturlty of those instruments and the
floating prime rate applied to long-term borrowmgs ‘

A substantial | portion of APF’s accounts receivable are with customers in the oil and natural gas mdustry and
are sub)ect to normal industry credit risks.

APF has a price risk management program whereby the commodlty price associated with a portion of its

- future productlon is fixed.- APF sells forward a portion of its future production through commodity swap
. agreements. with - ﬁnancrally sound counterparties. ‘The following contracts were outstanding as at
- December 31,2002. Based on estimated market values at ‘December 31 2002 had the contracts been settled

at that time, APF would incur a cost of $2.6 million. .

o Average o o
R , Type of daily Average contract Price
( “Term . . Commodity = - contract . quantity price index
_ ... Jan. to Mar. 2003 “Crudeoil . .Collar "~ 1nyoobbls’  US$24.82 to US$27.85  WTI
" 'Jan.to.Mar. 2003 Crudeoil = . Fixed price,. . 1,200 bbls. US$29.25 WTI
. Apr; to Jurie 2003; Crude oil - . Fixed price . 1,833 bbls US$26.46 WTI
July to Sept. 2003 - “Crude. oil " Fixed price T 667 bbls. US$26.46 WTI
Jan. to Mar. 2003 - ‘ Natural'gas©~ Collar - 2,000 GJ C$4.00to C$7.80  AECO
» .~Ian to Dec. 2003; “-‘Natural gas : ".fleed prrce cenooo Gl C$5.80 AECO

At December 31 2002 APF had ﬁxed the mterest rate ona portlon of its debt as follows:

 Term . : A‘mount-ﬂ-,. Lo T ~-Interest rate
~Jan. to May 2003 $16,000,000 i 3~40% plus stamping fee
- 'Elj‘ : ]-an to Nov. 2003 . : $20 000: ooo R 3. 94% plus stamping fee




- ', b) " APF is involved in certain legal actions that occurred in ‘the ordinary course of busmess Manaoement

LEMENTAL IN

_FOR THE STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

2001
e : $
- Cash payments'related 0 certain-itemns .

ﬂ,f:Cash payment S e -,

’ lnterest T : = 3,265,931
Distributions fo mmonty mterests,_ we 414,776 0. 337,877

36,539,143 36,543,928
2164 850_ i '576 829

Dlstnbutlons to Umtholders
Capxtal taxes L

a‘) gAPF has lease commxtments reiatmg to ofﬁce buddmgs‘ The estlmated annual operatmg lease rental :
-~ payments for the Dbuildings.will be $0.5 million ‘in 2003 through 2005, $o. 6 million in 2006 and
- $0.9 million in 2007 and 2008, the remaining term of the leases.

is of the opinion that losses, if any; arlsmg from such Iegal act1ons would not have a matenai effect on
‘these ﬁnanc1a1 statements T T TR e o

NOTE 17 SU‘BS’EQUENT EVENTS

1SNyl ADHING ddV

Acqulsmon of Hawk oil [nc ¢ T i t

Effective February 5, 2003, APF acqulred all of the 1ssued and ou andmg shares awk 011 Inc ("Hawk“)
- The purchase price of approximately $48.0 milliori was satisfied by a cash payment of $2.8 million, ’the ; , '
- issuance of 3.9 million Trust Units and the assumptlon of Hawk s bank debt of $9.0 million. - .~ BEPRE RE S

the Trust agreed to issue and sell up to 5,300,000 Trust Units at a price ‘of $10.40 per Trust Unit. Closing of
the offering and the issue of 5,300,000 Trust Units.took place on April 2, 2003. The estimated net proceeds
from the offering, after deducting expenses of the issue and after Agents’ commissions will bein the amount
of $52,114,000 and will be used to fund the acqulsmon of Nycan and repay debt ’

pl
Offer to Purchase Nyaan Energy Corp ; o
On March 10, 2003, APF entered into an. agreement to make an offer to pu:chase all of the 1ssued and . C
outstanding shares of Nycan Energy Corp. ("Nycan") for $2.075 per share in cash. If accepted by holders of ;N
all of the Nycan shares, the offer will result in payment of approximately $36.86 million in cash and the S
assumption of Nycan s bank debt of approxxmately $7 9 million. i - Z
Agency Agreement and Prospectus Filing ~ : ‘ N L v z
APF and the Agents entered into an Agency Agreement pursuant to whlch the Agents agreed to. offer and ' § ;

1y Od5d
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FIVE-YEAR REVIEW

2002 2001 2000 1999 1998
Average Daily Production
Oil (bbl/d) 5.307 3.167 1.152 1.104 833
‘Natural gas tmci/day) 18.488 15.391 13,449 13.656 15.219
NGLs {bbls/day) 144 100 254 274 jix]
Total (boe/day) 8,532 5.832 3.648 3.654 3.673
Annual {(mboe) 3114 2129 1.335 1.334 1.340
Commodlty Sales Prices (pre-hedge) _ ‘
Oit {$/bbl) o 35.82 3220 42.67 . 2672 17.1%9
Natural gas ($/mcf) 3.78 5.25 4.89 244 1.96
NGLs {$/bbl) 2515 -30.97 35.96 18.19 16.24
Average ($/boe) 30.91 31.87 - - 3401 18.56 13.36
Commodity Sales Prices (post-hedge)
Oil ($/bbl) 33.66 33.64 41.40 25.00 18.18
Natural gas {$/mcf) 383 494 472 236 204
NGLs (3/bb) 2515 30.97 35.96 18.19 16.24
Average ($/boe) 29.65 31.94 3298 17.74 13.92
Established (proved plus risked probabte) Reserves . :
Crude oil & NGLs (mbbl) ’ ' 20,608 13545 5.648 6,216 7.880
Naturat gas (mmcf) 68,290 50,984 46,364 41,366 46,386
Total (mboe} 31,989 22,042 13,375 13.110 15,611
Income Statement ($000)
Revenue
Oit and natural gas sales 92.345 68.039 44,047 23.685 18.669
Other income 1.676 1.886 928 1.022 999
94,021 69.924 44,974 24,707 19,668
Expenses
Crown royalties 10.985 7.236 4,405 1.899 1.732
Non-crown royalties 7.802 6.128 4,125 1.999 1,587
Operating costs 19,748 13.086 8,021 7.300 6.541
G&A 4,635 3,360 1.844 1,133 921
Management fees 1.976 1.503 993 465 337
Interest 2834 . 3048 1.882 1.955 2,079
Taxes 1.901 1.172 164 98 122
Depletion and depreciation 30.200 19.779 YAV 7.383 7.813
Site restoration 2.087 1.293 904 641 552
82,088 56,605 29514 22,872 21.685
Net income (after unusual items} 11.365 18.144 14075 {4.822) 2.183)
Bank debt 88,000 59.250 25,734 33.17 23.823
Ecenomics ($/boe)
Average oil & gas sales price {net of hedging) 29.65 31.94 32.98 17.74 13.92
QOther income 0.54 0.89 0.69 0.77 0.75
Net selling price 30.19 32.85 33.68 18.50 14.66
Royalties 6.01 6.28 6.39 292 248
Operating costs 6.35 6.15 6.01 5.47 4.88
Netbacks 17.83 20.42 21.28 10.11 7.31
General & administrative costs 1.49 1.58 1.38 0.85 0.69
Management fees 0.63 0N 0.74 0.35 0.25
Interest 0.91 1.43 1.41 1.47 1.55
Taxes - 0.61 0.55 0.12 0.07 0.09
Site restoration 0.05 0.19 0.03 017 0.12
Cash flow from operations 14.14 15.97 17.59 7.20 4.60
Units Qutstanding (000)
Year-end . 22942, 15.584. 7.139 5.890 5.890
Average 20,470 12,578 . 6,888 5,890 3,774
Market :
High $) 11.1¢ 13.40 10.40 9.70 9.75
Low (%) 2.00 8.75 7.00 7.25 7.65
Close ($) 9.79 9.85 9.75 8.10 8.00
Average daily volume 68,700 46,500 10.000 $.500 4,900




. OFFICERS

Offlcer Director

"",?f'-MartIn Hislop - |
,:.'_,»Mr Hlslop isa chartered accountant wrth more than 24 years expe .

}Chre Executive. SRS
e in all aspects of ﬁnancrng and

predecessor of APF Energy 1n September r994, Mr. Hlslop

the Presrdent and CEO of Lakewood
-+ Energy Inc., a TSX- hsted oil and gas company which was‘cr ated asa result of the amalgamatxon of 10

‘ “w:hmlted partnershrps for whom Mr Hlslop ralsed in excess f $125 mllllon in equlty between 1986 and
- 1992. Dunng 1984 and 1985 he provided corporate ﬁnance consuhmg services to.a Montreal -based

- investment dealer. Prior to that, Mr. Hrslop was Vice Presrdent Finance for Maxwell Cummrngs & Sons

2 A"’,Holdtngs Itd., a pnvate mvestment company In. that- capacrty he partrcrpated in the creatlon and/or
financing of several oil and gas compames in whlch the Cummmgs group took posmons mcludmg
Aberford Resources and Marline 01.1 ‘Under Mr. Hrslop s stewardshrp, APF Energy Trust has generated'

an mternal rate of return of zr%, placmg the Trust: among mdustry 1eaders

Steven CIoutier - Presrdent and Ch|ef Opera vg(Off)icer; Di'r

ice in oil:: and gas, corp ate ﬁnance mergers and

acqrusmons and law. Srnce pamapatmg in the formatl n.of; VAPF Energy Trust'm'r996 Mr. Cloutier has

been responsrble for the co -ordination of day to- day operatrons “of the business, and has been’ dlrectly

involved in oil and gas transactions worth more than $4oo million. Prior to co-founding APF Energy with

Mr. Hrslop, ‘Mr. Cloutier pract:rced law in Toronto with a medium- 51zed firm specializing in corporate
finance and secured lending. Before that Mr. Cloutier worked in the investment industry (1986 -87).
Mr. Cloutier is a graduate of the Umversrty of Victoria. (Law) and McGill Unrvers1ty (Labour Relatlons)

Bonnie Nlcol Vlce President, Operatlons ; ’

Ms. Nicolis a professmnal engineer with 18 years' expenence in the petroleum rndustry, and a broad range -

of expertise in operatlons optrmrzatlon and evaluatrons Prlor to. ]omlng APF in early 1998

Ms. Nicol was responsible for the Provost and. Saskatchewan business - Unit of Northstar Energy‘

Corporation, a senior oil and gas producer. Since graduatmg from the Umversrty of Alberta vnth a degree o
in chemical engineering, Ms. Nicol has assumed roles of i mcreasmg responsrbrhty at: several oil and gas .. -+
companies. As the leader of the operatrons team Ms. Nrcol oversees a productlon base of more than :

13,000 boe per day, and a technical staff whlch operates more than 90% ofits productron

1SNyl ADHIAINID ddV
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ARPF ENERGY TRUST

R Kenneth S|dent Corporate Development & Land
Mr. Pretty i is: a professr_ nial land' an wnh 21 years' experrence in the oil and gas industry. After graduating:

“with an econormcs degree from the Unlversrty of Calgary Mr.. Pretty joined Norcen Energy's land
: department where he was: expose

O & broad range- of mandates overa 12-year period. Mr. Pretty joined

Amerada Hess in the mid- 19909 in a semor land and busmess development position, and remained w1th
1on by Petro- Canada In 1997, Mr. Pretty moved to Newport Petroleums

. as VlCE Presrdent Land, and later beeame che Presmlent Business Development when Newport was

cqurred by Hunt 011 Company in zooo He ]omed APF in mid-2001 and since then has been responsible
the 1dent1ﬁcat10n evaluanon and executlon of all acqursmon and divestiture activities, as well as the

9 7ato 1999, Mr MacDonald was Vice President, Fmance of Starvest Capltal A
mandates managed Starcor Energy Royalty Fund and Orion Energy Trust, two

esources [nc.,-a prlvate oil and gas company In. hrs posmon Mr MacDonald leads the team that is

responsrble for all ﬁnancral and adm1mstrat1ve functrons for APF Energy Trust. -

h 'John Ewmg Vlce Presudent GeoScience v
e Mr Ewmo isa professronal geologlst w1th more than 25 years of experience in the oil and gas industry.
i Followmg graduatron w1th an honours degree in earth sciences from the University of Waterloo in 1978,
. Ewmg beoan hrs career w1th Husky Oil. After technical and managerial positions at several oil and gas
vcompames Mr Ewrng }omed Tethys Energy Inc. as Vice President, Exploration in 1996, where he oversaw
& the exploranon program ‘which contributed to the growth of the company from 650 boe/d in late 1996 to
‘ 1.400 boe/d in, the’ begmmng of zooo .Prior to joining APF, Mr. Ewing was President of a private
: fresources and consultmg ﬁrm In l'ns posmon Mr Ewrnu is responSlble for overseeing the geological and




- 1985 Frorn 2001 to the present he has been Vrce Pre51dent and Director of Stag Valley Management Ltd. -
. -a company that manages pnvate dnllmg funds Frorn 1996 to’ May 2000, Mr Engle was also President. of
.. Grey Wolf Exploratxon Inc,a publrcly traded 01l and gas company | listed on the Toronto Stock Exchange.

DIRECTORS

lirec o'rs"‘:of APF, the

B V'Board Comrnlttees Aucht Reserves Compensatron o :

E Mr Engle has been Presrdent of Sapphlre Resources Ltd a pnvate oil and gas consultmg company since

In addition to hrs membershlp on the APF Board Mr Engle sits on the Board of Directors of Canscot
Resources Ltd., wh.rch is listed on the TSX Venture Exchange Mr. Engle isa professxonal landman wrthjmi’w
more than 34 years of expenence 1n the petroleum 1ndus s e

'Daniel Mercler - Independent Director

1SNyl ADYHINDG ddV

Board Comrmttees Compensatwn .

M Mercxer is a professwnal engmeer mtha wealth:of expenence\'m the operatlon management and .
capltalrzatron of oil and gas compa.mes Mr. Merdier has been Vice President;” Operations for SOCO
International plc a pubhcly traded Umted ngdom corporatlon engaged in international oil and natural

000

. gas.exploration ‘and producnon since September 1998 Pnor to that he was Chairman, Chief Executive
- Officer and a Director of Temtonal Resources, Inc.; an 011 and gas exploranon company which merged
with SOCO. From }anuary of 1996 to March of 1996 Mr Mercier was employed by Chancellor Energy
Resources Inc. as Ch1ef Operatmg Ofﬁcer 10 assist with the sale of the company to HCO Energy Ltd. Prior

T OINNY

to ]anuary of 1996 he was President and Ch1ef Executlve Officer of Catiadian Conquest Exploranons Inc.

Wllliam Dickson = Independent Director
Board Commitiees: Audlt Reserves JEITRNN

4 b

Mr. Dickson brings to APF Energy. Trust more: than 40 years of techmcal management and pubhc

LHOGE

company experience in the 011 and gas mdustry Heis. actrve as pri nc1pal of Arlyn Enterpnses Ltd a private
lubricants company, and serves on the. Boards of APF Energy Trust, Munas Energy Corporation and IMS
Petroleun Ltd. Prewously, he has. held senior. executwe or. operatrng pos1t10ns with Myriad Energy

Corporanon 3D Reclamatron Inc Starnpeder Exploratron Ltd and Ultramar oil and Gas Ltd
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HEAD ‘OFFICE
2100, 144, — Fourth:
Calgary, Alberta: T2P 3N
",Te] (403) 294-1000.
~ Toll Free: (800) 838 19206
- Fax: (493) 2941074
nail: mvest@apfenergy com.

WWW. apfenergy.com -

. ,DlRECTORS AND OFFICERS
o Don Engle . ‘Q
Inde; ’endent D1rector and

zrman of the Board{niz)
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.Dlrector(ﬂ ' o
.Chlef Execumve Oﬁicer
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. ;Alan MacDonald
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' Bonme NlCOl
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL AND SPECIAL MEETING

TO: THE HOLDERS OF TRUST UNITS OF APF ENERGY TRUST

TAKE NOTICE that an Annual General and Special Meeting (the "Meeting") of the holders ("Unitholders")
of trust units ("Trust Units") of APF Ener%y Trust (the "Trust") will be held at the Sun Life Plaza
Conference Centre, Mezzanine Level, 140 — 4™ Avenue S.W. Calgary, Alberta, on Wednesday, the 11th day
of June, 2003, at 3:00 p.m. (Calgary time) for the following purposes:

Annual Meeting

1. to receive and consider the consolidated financial statements of the Trust and APF Energy Inc.
("Energy™) for the year ended December 31, 2002 and the auditors' report thereon;

2. to select directors of Energy and to fix the number of directors of Energy for the forthcoming year
at six (6) directors;

3. to appoint auditors of the Trust and to authorize the directors of Energy to fix the remuneration of

~ the auditors;
Special Meeting
4, to consider and, if thought fit, approve a resolution re-appointing Computershare Trust Company

of Canada as the trustee of the Trust;

5. to consider and, if thought fit, approve a resolution approving and ratifying the issuance of rights

under the Trust Unit Incentive Rights Plan of the Trust, to the extent the rights were granted, in

excess of the authorized maximum under the Plan;

6. to consider and, if thought fit, approve a resolution to increase the maximum number of Trust
Units issuable under the Trust Unit Incentive Rights Plan of the Trust;

7. to consider and, if thought fit, approve a special resolution to amend the royalty agreement
between Energy and Computershare Trust Company of Canada as trustee of the Trust, to delete
certain criteria relating to future acquisitions by Energy;

&. to consider and, if thought fit, approve a resolution ratifying, confirming and approving the
implementation by the Trust of a Unitholders’ Rights Plan;

9. to consider and, if thought fit, approve a special resolution to terminate the Unanimous

Shareholder Agreement between APF and the Trust;

10. to transact such other business as may properly be brought before the Meeting or any
adjournment thereof.

The specific details of the matters proposed to be put before the Meeting are set forth in the Information
Circular - Proxy Statement accompanying and forming part of this Notice.

Computershare Trust Company of Canada, the Trustee of the Trust, has fixed the record date for the
Meeting at the close of business on May 12, 2003 (the "Record Date"). At the Meeting, Unitholders of
record included in the list of Unitholders prepared as at the Record Date will be entitled to vote those Trust
Units. No Unitholder who became a Unitholder after the Record Date will be entitled to vote at the
Meeting.




Unitholders who are unable to attend the Meeting in person are requested to date and sign the enclosed
Instrument of Proxy and to mail it to Computershare Trust Company of Canada Attention: Proxy
Department, 9™ Floor, 100 University Avenue, Toronto, Ontario  M5J 2Y2. In order to be valid and acted
upon at the Meeting, forms of proxy must be returned to the aforesaid address not less than 24 hours before
the time set for the holding of the Meeting or any adjournment thereof.

DATED at Calgary, Alberta, this 12th day of May, 2003.

BY ORDER OF COMPUTERSHARE TRUST
COMPANY OF CANADA
By APF ENERGY INC.

(Signed) Martin Hislop
Chief Executive Officer




APF ENERGY TRUST

Information Circular - Proxy Statement

for the Annual General and Special Meeting of Unitholders
to be held on Wednesday, June 11, 2003

SOLICITATION OF PROXIES

This Information Circular - Proxy Statement is furnished in connection with the solicitation of proxies
by management of APF Energy Inc. ("APF"), on behalf of APF Energy Trust (the "Trust") for use at the
Annual General and Special Meeting (the "Meeting") of the holders (the "Unitholders") of trust units ("Trust
Units") of the Trust to be held on the 11™ day of June, 2003, at 3:00 p.m. (Calgary time) at the Sun Life Plaza
Conference Centre, Mezzanine Level, 140 — 4™ Avenue SW, Calgary, Alberta, and at any adjournment thereof,
for the purposes set forth in the Notice of Annual General and Special Meeting. Instruments of Proxy must be
received by Computershare Trust Company of Canada (the "Trustee") Attention: Proxy Department, at gt
Floor, 100 University Avenue, Toronto, Ontario, M3J 2Y2, not less than 24 hours before the time for the
holding of the Meeting or any adjournment thereof. The Trustee has fixed the record date for the Meeting at
the close of business on May 12, 2003 (the "Record Date"). Only Unitholders of record at the Record Date are
entitled to receive notice of the Meeting. Unitholders of record will be entitled to vote those Trust Units
owned by them and included in the list of Unitholders entitled to vote at the Meeting prepared as of the Record
Date even though the Unitholder has since disposed of his or her Trust Units, No Unitholder who became a
Unitholder after the Record Date shall be entitled to vote at the Meeting. ‘

The instrument appointing a proxy shall be in writing and shall be executed by the Unitholder or his attorney
authorized in writing or, if the Unitholder is a corporation, under its corporate seal or by an officer or attorney
thereof duly authorized.

The persons named in the enclosed form of proxy are Directors of APF. Each Unitholder has the right
to appoint a proxyholder other than the persons designated in the form of proxy, who need not be a
Unitholder, to attend and to act for him and on his behalf at the Meeting. To exercise such right, the
names of the nominees of management should be crossed out and the name of the Unitholder's appointee
should be legibly printed in the blank space provided.

REVOCABILITY OF PROXY

A Unitholder who has submitted a proxy may revoke it at any time prior to the exercise thereof. If a person
who has given a proxy attends personally at the Meeting at which such proxy is to be voted, such person may
revoke the proxy and vote in person. In addition to revocation in any other manner permitted by law, a proxy
may be revoked by instrument in writing executed by the Unitholder or his attorney authorized in writing or, if
the Unitholder is a corporation, under its corporate seal or by an officer or attorney thereof duly authorized and
deposited either at the head office of APF at any time up to and including the last business day preceding the
day of the Meeting, or any adjournment thereof, at which the proxy is to be used, or with the Chairman of the
Meeting on the day of the Meeting, or any adjournment thereof, and upon either of such deposits, the proxy is
revoked.

PERSONS MAKING THE SOLICITATION

The solicitation is made on behalf of the Trust. The costs incurred in the preparation and mailing of the
Instrument of Proxy, Notice of Annual General and Special Meeting and this Information Circular - Proxy
Statement will be borne by the Trust. In addition to solicitation by mail, proxies may be solicited by personal
interviews, telephone or other means of communication and by Directors, Officers and employees of APF,
- who will not be specifically remunerated therefor.




EXERCISE OF DISCRETION BY PROXY

The Trust Units represented by proxy in favour of management nominees shall be voted on any ballot at the
Meeting and, where the Unitholder specifies a choice with respect to any matter to be acted upon, the Trust
Units shall be voted on any ballot in accordance with the specification so made.

In the absence of such specification, the Trust Units will be voted in favour of the matters to be acted upon.
The persons appointed under the Instrument of Proxy furnished by the Trust are conferred with
discretionary authority with respect to amendments or variations of those matters specified in the
Instrument of Proxy and Notice of Annual General and Special Meeting. At the time of printing this
Information Circular - Proxy Statement, neither APF nor the Trustee knows of any such amendment,
variation or other matter.

VOTING TRUST UNITS AND PRINCIPAL HOLDERS THEREOF

The Trust is authorized to issue 500,000,000 Trust Units. As of the date hereof, 32,282,236 Trust Units are
issued and outstanding. At the Meeting, upon a show of hands, every Unitholder present in person or
represented by proxy and entitled to vote shall have one vote. On a poll or ballot, every Unitholder present in
person or by proxy has one vote for each Trust Unit, in respect of which he is the registered holder. All votes
on special resolutions shall be by a poll and no demand for a poll shall be necessary.

When any Trust Unit is held jointly by several persons, any one of them may vote at the Meeting in person or by
proxy in respect of the Trust Unit, but if more than one of them shall be present at such meeting in person or by
proxy, and such joint owners of the proxy so present disagree as to any vote to be cast, the joint owner present or
represented whose name appears first in the register of Unitholders maintained by the Trustee shall be entitled to
cast such vote.

To the best of the knowledge of the Trustee and the Directors and senior Officers of APF, there is no person or
corporation which beneficially owns, directly or indirectly, or exercises control or direction over Trust Units
carrying more than 10% of the voting rights attached to the issued and outstanding Trust Units of the Trust which
may be voted at the Meeting.

The number of Trust Units of the Trust that are owned, directly or indirectly, by all Directors and Officers of APF
and their associates as group is 861,782 (2.67%) of the outstanding Trust Units. In addition, the Directors,
Officers and employees of APF hold options and rights entitling them as a group to acquire an additional
1,935,900 Trust Units of the Trust, the issuance and exercise of 1,383,007 of which are subject to Unitholder and
regulatory approval. See “Matters to be Acted Upon at the Meeting — Trust Unit Incentive Rights Plan
Amendment”.

VOTING OF TRUST UNITS - ADVICE TO BENEFICIAL HOLDERS

The information set forth in this section is of significant importance to many Unitholders of the Trust, as a
substantial number of the Unitholders do not hold Trust Units in their own name. Unitholders who do not
hold their Trust Units in their own name (referred to in this Information Circular as "Beneficial Holders"} should
note that only proxies deposited by Unitholders whose names appear on the records of the Trust as the registered
holders of Trust Units can be recognized and acted upon at the Meeting. If Trust Units are listed in an account
statement provided to a Unitholder by a broker, then in almost all cases those Trust Units will more likely be
registered under the name of the broker or an agent of a broker. In Canada, the vast majority of such Trust Units
are registered under the name of CDS & Co., (the registration name for The Canadian Depositary for Securities,
which acts as nominee for many Canadian brokerage firms). Trust Units held by brokers or their nominees can
only be voted (for or against resolutions) upon the instructions of the Beneficial Holder. Without specific
instructions, brokers/nominees are prohibited from voting Trust Units for their clients. The Trustee of the Trust




does not know for whose benefit the Trust Units registered in the name of CDS & Co. are held. Therefore,
Beneficial Holders cannot be recognized at the Meeting for purposes of voting the Trust Units in person or by
way of proxy, except as set out below.

Applicable regulatory policy requires intermediaries/brokers to seek voting instructions from Beneficial Holders
in advance of meetings. Every intermediary/broker has its own mailing procedures and provides its own return
instructions, which should be carefully followed by Beneficial Holders in order to ensure that the Trust Units are
voted at the Meeting. Often, the form of proxy supplied to a Beneficial Holder by its broker is identical to that
provided to registered Unitholders. However, its purpose is limited to instructing the registered Unitholder how
to vote on behalf of the Beneficial Holder. The majority of brokers now delegate responsibility for obtaining
instructions from clients to ADP Investor Communications ("ADP"). ADP typically mails a scannable Voting
Instruction Form in lieu of the form of proxy. The Beneficial Holder is requested to complete and return the
Voting Instruction Form to them by mail or facsimile. Alternatively, the Beneficial Holder can call a toll-free
number to vote the Trust Units held by the Beneficial Holder. ADP then tabulates the results of all instructions
received and provides appropriate instructions respecting the voting of Trust Units to be represented at the
Meeting. A Beneficial Holder receiving a Voting Instruction Form cannot use that Voting Instruction Form to
vote Trust Units directly at the Meeting as the Voting Instruction Form must be returned as directed by ADP well
in advance of the Meeting in order to have the Trust Units voted.

IF YOU ARE A BENEFICIAL UNITHOLDER AND WISH TO VOTE IN PERSON AT THE
MEETING, PLEASE CONTACT YOUR BROKER OR AGENT WELL IN ADVANCE OF THE
MEETING TO DETERMINE HOW YOU CAN DO SO.

QUORUM FOR MEETING

At the Meeting, a quorum shall consist of two or more persons either present in person or represented by proxy
and representing in the aggregate not less than 10% of the outstanding Trust Units. If a quorum is not present
at the Meeting within one half an hour after the time fixed for the holding of the Meeting, it shall stand
adjourned to such day being not less than fourteen (14) days later and to such place and time as may be
determined by the Chairman of the Meeting. At such Meeting, the Unitholders present either personally or by
proxy shall form a quorum. In the case of the Meeting, at which a special resolution is under consideration,
such adjournments are required to be for not less than 21 days nor more than 60 days and notice is to be given
at least 10 days prior to the date of the adjourned meeting.

MATTERS TO BE ACTED UPON AT MEETING

1. Re-Appointment of Trustee

The Trust Indenture by which the Trust was formed provides that the Unitholders shall, at each annual
meeting, re-appoint or appoint a successor to the Trustee. Accordingly, Unitholders will consider an ordinary
resolution to appoint Computershare Trust Company of Canada ("Computershare") as trustee of the Trust.
Computershare, or its predecessor, The Trust Company of Bank of Montreal, has been trustee of the Trust
since formation on October 10, 1996. :

The Board of Directors recommends that Unitholders approve the Trustee Re-Appointment Resolution.
The form of Trustee Replacement Resolution is set forth in Schedule "A".

2. Exercise of Rights

The Trust has established an option plan (the “Original Plan”) and an incentive rights plan (the “New Plan”),
together the “Plans” (as defined and described below under "Trust Unit Incentive Plan and Trust Unit Incentive




Rights Plan"). The Plans currently provide that the maximum number of Trust Units issuable thereunder is
800,000.

Since the formation of the Original Plan, options to acquire 546,723 Trust Units have been granted. Of these,
221,193 options have been exercised and 115,109 have been cancelled or expired, leaving 210,421
outstanding. No new grants will be made under the Original Plan.

There have also been 1,765,793 rights granted under the New Plan. Of these, 25,914 have been exercised and
14,400 have been cancelled or expired, leaving 1,725,479 outstanding, calculated as follows:

Options Rights
Options Outstanding Rights Outstanding
Maximum issuable 800,000 368,386
Grants (546,723) 546,723 (1,765,793) 1,765,793
253,277 (1,397,407)
Cancelled/Terminated 115,109 (115,109) 14,400 (14,400)
Balance available for issuance of rights 368,386 (1,383,007)
Exercises (221,193) (25,914)
Outstanding 210,421 1,725,479

All future grants will be made under the New Plan.

After taking into account options issued under the Original Plan, there was a maximum of 368,386 Trust Units
authorized for issuance under the New Plan. Grants under the New Plan have been made in excess of this
maximum number issuable. At present, there are 1,383,007 rights that remain outstanding, that are in excess
of the authorized maximum amount issuable under the New Plan.

These rights, which were granted at exercise prices from $9.67 to $10.80, (27.72% of which were issued to
Officers and Directors and 72.28% to non-executive employees) expire between March, 2012 and April, 2013.
They cannot be exercised unless their issuance and exercise is approved and ratified by Unitholders at the
Meeting.

The Unitholders will be asked to consider and, if deemed advisable, to approve, by a majority of votes cast at
the Meeting, (excluding votes attached to securities beneficially owned by insiders to whom Trust Units may
be issued pursuant to the Plans and their associates) a resolution (the "Rights Exercise Resolution") to ratify
the issuance and exercise of 1,383,007 rights issued under the New Plan.

As at the date hereof, to the knowledge of APF Energy, 861,782 Trust Units held by insiders or their associates
will be excluded from the vote on this resolution, representing approximately 2.67% of the issued and
outstanding Trust Units of the Trust.

The Board of Directors recommends that Unitholders approve the Rights Exercise Resolution.

The form of Rights Exercise Resolution is set forth in Schedule "A".




3. The Trust Unit Incentive Rights Plan Amendment

Since the number of outstanding Trust Units has increased from 3,500,000 to 32,282,236 since the Original
Plan was implemented, as a result of the expansion of the business of APF and the Trust, the Board of
Directors considers that it is desirable to increase the maximum number of Trust Units issuable under the New
Plan. In addition, the Board of Directors wishes to have sufficient Trust Units issuable pursuant to the New
Plan to enable APF to attract and retain people of experience and ability, for the benefit of the Trust.

The Toronto Stock Exchange ("TSX") requires that a listed company specify the maximum number of
securities that are issuable pursuant to its incentive plans. The TSX requires that a listed company seek
securityholder approval to increase this maximum number.

The Unitholders will be asked to consider and, if deemed advisable, to approve, by a majority of votes cast at
the Meeting, (excluding votes attached to securities beneficially owned by insiders to whom Trust Units may
be issued pursuant to the Plans and their associates) a resolution (the "Trust Unit Incentive Rights Plan
Amendment Resolution") to increase the maximum number of Trust Units issuable under the New Plan, from
368,386 to 2,600,000 (an increase of 2,231,614). The maximum of 2,600,000 under the New Plan is 8% of the
outstanding Trust Units (and together with the options outstanding under the Original Plan is 8.7%). This will
increase the reserve under the New Plan from a deficit of 1,383,007, to 848,607. As a result, APF will have
room to grant an additional 848,607 rights.

As at the date hereof, to the knowledge of APF Energy, 861,782 Trust Units held by insiders or their associates
will be excluded from the vote on this resolution, representing approximately 2.67% of the issued and
outstanding Trust Units of the Trust.

The Board of Directors recommends that Unitholders approve the Plan Amendment Resolution.
The form of Trust Unit Incentive Rights Plan Amendment Resolution is set forth in Schedule "A".
4. Amendment of Royalty Agreement

APF and the Trustee are parties to a Royalty Agreement originally made December 17, 1996, as amended and
restated, pursuant to which APF has granted a royalty to the Trust, being an entitlement to 99% of royalty
income generated by the petroleum and natural gas properties owned by APF from time to time. The Royalty
Agreement imposes restrictions on future acquisitions of petroleum and natural gas properties that may be
made by APF, and provides that such future acquisitions may only be made if they satisfy certain criteria. The
provisions of the Royalty Agreement relating to “Restriction on Future Acquisitions” are set out at Schedule
“C”. '

The terms of the Royalty Agreement were negotiated at the time of the formation of the Trust, in the context of
the Trust as a start-up entity. Since that time, the management of APF has executed numerous acquisitions
resulting in Unitholders receiving a 21% internal rate of return since January 1, 1997.

1t is important that APF continue to make strategic and timely acquisitions. There may be situations where a
particular acquisition does not fit within the specific criteria of the Royalty Agreement, although the
acquisition is desirable in terms of synergies with the other assets of APF, requirements of operatorship or in
terms of upside potential not recognized in the vendor’s independent engineering report, but identified
internally by APF. For these reasons, the Board of Directors of APF has determined it is appropriate and in the
best interests of Unitholders that the restrictions placed on future acquisitions by APF be removed from the
Royalty Agreement. The Board of Directors is, as a result, proposing that Unitholders be asked at the Meeting
to consider and, if thought appropriate, to pass a Special Resolution to amend the Royalty Agreement to delete
the criteria that currently must be followed by APF in making future acquisitions.




The Board of Directors recommends that Unitholders approve the Royalty Agreement Amendment
Resolution. :

The form of Royalty Agreement Amendment Resolution is set forth in Schedule “A”.
5. Unitholders' Rights Plan

The Trust instituted a Unitholder Rights Plan (the "Original URP") in 1999 which was approved by the
Unitholders at the Trust's 1999 Annual and Special Meeting. The Original URP expired in April, 2003 in
accordance with its terms. The Board of Directors of APF has determined it appropriate and in the best
interests of the Unitholders that a renewed and amended URP (the “New URP”) be implemented in accordance
with a rights plan agreement with Computershare Trust Company of Canada as Rights Agent effective
April 19, 2003. Accordingly, Unitholders will be asked at the Meeting to consider and, if thought appropriate,
to pass an ordinary resolution to approve the New URP (the “Unitholders’ Rights Plan Resolution™).

The primary objective of the New URP is to provide the Board of Directors of APF with sufficient time to
consider and, if appropriate, explore and develop alternatives for maximizing Unitholder value in the event that
a take-over bid is made for the Trust, and to provide every Unitholder with an equal opportunity to participate
in such a bid. The New URP is intended to regulate certain aspects of take-over bids for the Trust but it is not
intended to impede a bona fide attempt to acquire control of the Trust, if an offer is made fairly.

The terms of the New URP are substantially the same as for the Original URP, with amendments to better
align the New URP with the new generation of rights plans in Canada, for which the protection of
securityholder interests 1s the paramount consideration.

The terms of the New URP are set out in Schedule "B".

In accordance with TSX requirements, the adoption of the New URP must be confirmed by Unitholders at a
meeting of such Unitholders by the affirmative vote of a majority of the Trust Units voted by Unitholders
present in person or represented by proxy at the meeting.

In addition, the adoption of the New URP must be confirmed by Unitholders by the affirmative vote of a
majority of the Trust Units voted by Unitholders other than any Unitholder which directly or indirectly on its
own or in concert with others, holds or exercises control over more than 20% of the Trust Units of the Trust
and associates, affiliates and insiders of such a person.

The Board of Directors recommends that Unitholders approve the Unitholders’ Rights Plan Resolution.
The form of Unitholders’ Rights Plan Resolution is set forth in Schedule "A".

6. Termination of Unanimous Shareholder Agreement

On the formation of the Trust in 1996, an agreement (the "Shareholder Agreement") was entered into among
the Trustee, the Manager and APF, by which it was agreed that a majority of the Board of Directors of APF
would be independent Directors elected by Unitholders. In addition, it provided that the Chairman of the

Board of Directors of APF would be one of the independent Directors.

On the Internalization of Management (described below) the Trust Indenture of the Trust was amended to
provide that Unitholders are entitled to vote for the election of all Directors for the Board of Directors of APF.

As a result of the Internalization of Management, the Shareholder Agreement no longer serves any purpose,
and the Trust is the sole shareholder of APF. As a result, it is proposed that the Shareholder Agreement be




terminated. Accordingly, Unitholders will be asked at the Meeting to consider and if thought appropriate to
pass a Special Resolution to terminate the Shareholder Agreement (the “Shareholder Agreement Resolution™).

The Board of Directors recommends that.Unitholders approve the Shareholder Agreement Resolution.
The form of Shareholder Agreement Resolution is set forth in Schedule “A”.

7. Election of Directors of APF

The Trust Indenture provides that the members of the Board of Directors of APF are to be selected by a vote of
Unitholders at a meeting of Unitholders held in accordance with the Trust Indenture and that following such

meeting the Trustee shall elect the individuals so selected by the Unitholders to the Board of Directors of APF.

Six (6) nominees have been nominated as Directors of APF to hold office until the next annual general
meeting, or until their successors are duly elected or appointed or until a Director vacates his office.

The names and municipalities of residence of the six persons nominated for selection as Directors of APF by
Unitholders, the number of Trust Units of the Trust beneficially owned, directly or indirectly, or over which
each exercises control or direction, the offices held by each in APF, the period served as Director and the
principal occupation of each are as follows:

Name and Municipality Number of Trust Units Offices Held and Time Principal Occupation
of Residence Beneficially Owned or as Director
Controlled
Meartin Hislop” 237,7214X Chief Executive Officer Chief Executive Officer of APF
Calgary, Alberta and formerly President;
Director since
December 8, 1995
Steven Cloutier®™ 263,075® President, Chief President and Chief Operating
Calgary, Alberta Operating Officer, Officer of APF
Corporate Secretary and
Treasurer; Director
since December 8, 1995
Donald Engle®@® 23,4007 Director since President of Sapphire Resources
Calgary, Alberta December 1, 2000 and Ltd., a private oil and gas
Chairman of the Board consulting company
since March 19, 2002
Daniel Mercier @ 25,0007 Director since Vice President, Operations,
Okotoks, Alberta October 1, 1996 SOCO International plc, an
international oil and gas
exploration company
William Dickson®”® 15,306 Director since Director of Dickson Resources
Calgary, Alberta November 1, 1996 Inc., an oil and gas company
Robert MacDonald Nil Nominee Director, Commercial Banking,
Calgary, Alberta CIBC World Markets since
October, 1998; prior thereto,
Managing Director of Koch

Capital, the merchant banking
arm of a private U.S. based

energy company from March
1998 to October 1998.




Notes:

(0)) Member of Audit Committee.

@) Member of the Compensation Committee.

3) Member of the Reserves Committee.

4 The Trust does not have an executive committee of its Board of Directors.

(5) The spouse of Mr. Hislop also holds 199,142 Trust Units.

(6) Mr. Hislop holds options and rights to acquire 172,708 Trust Units and Steven Cloutier holds options and rights to acquire 147,508 Trust

Units, in each case at exercise prices between $7.15 and $9.73, of which the exercise of 76,008 and 76,008 respectively is subject to
ratification by Unitholders.

0] Messrs. Mercier, Dickson and Engle hold 15,858, 22,523 and 35,512 options and rights, respectively, to acquire Trust Units, of which the
exercise of 10,858, 10,858 and 15,512 respectively is subject to ratification by Unitholders.

Martin Hislop was an officer of APF Energy Management Inc. (the "Manager") since September of 1994 and
became an Officer of APF in December, 1995. From 1986 to July of 1994, Mr. Hislop was President and
Chief Executive Officer of Lakewood Energy Inc. and its predecessor, Lakewood Capital Group Inc.

Steven Cloutier was an officer of the Manager since September of 1994 and became an officer of APF in
December, 1995. Prior to 1994, Mr. Cloutier was in private law practice.

Mr. Engle is a professional Landman and has been President of Sapphire Resources Ltd., a private oil and gas
consulting company, since 1975. From 1996 to May, 2000, Mr. Engle was also President of Grey Wolf
Exploration Inc., a publicly traded oil and gas company listed on the TSX. He is also a Director of CanScot
Resources Ltd. '

Mr. Mercier is Vice President, Operations for SOCO International plc ("SOCO"), a position he accepted in
September, 1998. Prior thereto he was Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and a Director of Territorial
Resources, Inc., a Colorado company engaged in international oil and natural gas exploration, which merged
with SOCO on September 8, 1998. SOCO is a publicly traded United Kingdom corporation engaged in
international oil and natural gas exploration and production.

Mr. Dickson is a consultant, and has provided oilfield operations advice to oil and gas and service companies
since 1989, upon retirement as Vice President, Production of Ultramar Oil and Gas Canada Ltd. During that
time, he has also been a Director of Dickson Resources Inc., an oil and natural gas company and Arlyn
Enterprises Ltd., a vendor of commercial and consumer lubrication oils. From November, 1995 to January,
1997, he was Vice-President of 3-D Reclamation Inc., a company carrying on the business of abandoning and
related reclamation of oil and gas wells.

Mr. MacDonald has been Director, Commercial Banking, CIBC World Markets, a subsidiary of a Canadian
Chartered Bank, since October, 1998. From March, 1998 to October, 1998 he was Managing Director, Koch
Capital, the merchant banking arm of a private, U.S. based energy company. From 1993 to March, 1998,
Mr. MacDonald was Vice President, Oil & Gas Group, Canadian Imperial Bank of Commerce. Prior to that,
he spent 17 years in other positions within the financial services industry.

The information as to securities beneficially owned, directly or indirectly or over which control or direction is
exercised, is based upon information furnished to the Trust by the respective persons whose names appear
above.

8. Appointment of Auditors of the Trust

The Trust Indenture provides that the auditors of the Trust will be selected at each annual meeting of
Unitholders.  Accordingly, Unitholders will consider an ordinary resolution to appoint the firm of
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, Chartered Accountants, Calgary, Alberta, to serve as auditors of the Trust until
the next annual meeting of the Unitholders and to authorize the Directors of APF to fix the remuneration of the
auditors. PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP have been the auditors of the Trust since its formation on October 10,
1996.




EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION PRIOR TO INTERNALIZATION OF MANAGEMENT

On December 18, 2002, Unitholders approved the internalization of management of the Trust (the
"Internalization of Management"), as described below, and, in connection with the acquisition of the Manager
on January 3, 2003 by the Trust, the external management contract structure of the Trust as described below
and all related fees were eliminated.

APF Management Agreement

In its role under the APF Management Agreement, as manager of the Trust, the Manager received a
management fee (the "Management Fee") for the year ended December 31, 2002. The Management Fee was
payable on the date that cash distributions were made to Unitholders, in an amount equal to 3.5% of net
production revenues from the oil and gas properties of APF plus Alberta Royalty Tax Credits, less Crown
royalties and other Crown charges. Management Fees were deducted in computing royalty income payable to
the Trust, to the extent not paid from the residual income of APF. The Trust was entitled to 99% of the royalty
income and the Manager retained the other 1%.

The Manager was paid $1,976,054 of Management Fees for the one-year period ended December 31, 2002.

General and Administrative Costs

The Manager was also entitled to reimbursement for general and administrative costs. General and
administrative costs are deducted in computing royalty income. General and administrative costs were,
through the year ended December 31, 2002, generally charged to APF and the Trust by the Manager based on.
time spent and direct costs incurred in fulfilling the obligations of the Manager to APF and the Trust pursuant
to the APF Management Agreement and the Trust Management Agreement respectively.

The Manager was reimbursed $2.3 million for general and administrative costs for the one-year period ended
December 31, 2002.

Acquisition and Disposition Fees

The Manager was also paid an acquisition fee equal to 1.5% of the purchase price of any properties acquired
by APF. In the event that the interest of APF in the properties or a portion thereof was sold, the Manager was,
pursuant to the APF Management Agreement, entitled to receive a disposition fee equal to 1.5% of the sale
price of the properties sold, provided that no such fee was payable from proceeds of disposition of Properties
which were acquired within one year of such disposition nor on Properties acquired with the proceeds of a
divestiture made within one year of the acquisition on which a fee had been paid. '

The Manager received a fee of approxiinately $1.02 million in connection with the acquisition of properties in
the 2002 calendar year. This fee was capitalized and included in the adjusted purchase prices of the properties.

No acquisition fee was paid to the Manager with respect to the Internalization of Management or on account of
acquisitions, dispositions or property exchanges after October 15, 2002,

Internalization of Management

On January 3, 2003, the Trust indirectly acquired all of the shares of the Manager, and its subsidiaries, and the
Manger was amalgamated with APF. This effected the buyout of the management contracts with the Manager
and the purchase of the rights to the 1% and 3.5% revenue streams and structuring fee entitlements owned by
the Manager.
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APF, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Trust, now provides management and administrative services to the
Trust and its subsidiaries, similar to the services provided by the Manager prior to the Internalization of
Management.

Trust Unit Options and Rights

The only options and rights to purchase Trust Units of the Trust granted to the independent Directors of APF
and the Directors, Officers and employees of the Manager and APF during the financial year ended
December 31, 2002 were 441,233 rights at an average exercise price of $9.86. In that financial year, 61,177
options and rights were exercised and 37,234 were forfeited.

The following table sets forth with respect to the independent Directors of APF, and the management Directors
and Officers of the Manager and APF, the number of Trust Units acquired on exercise of options and rights
during the year and the Unexercised Trust Unit Options/Rights and the Value of in-the-Money Trust Unit
Option/Rights at December 31, 2002.

Value of Unexercised
in-the-Money
Unexercised Trust Unit Options/Rights at
Options at FY-End FY-End®
v # ®
Securities Acquired Aggregated Value
or Exercised Realized Exercisable/ Exercisable/
Name #) (&) Unexercisable Unexercisable -
Independent Directors 6,666 17,931 10,552/42,780 944/11,902
Management Directors
and Officers 33,839 51,018 57,800/226,895 75,668/65,147

The closing price of the Trust Units on the TSX on December 31, 2002 was $9.79.

Rights holders can elect to reduce the exercise price of their rights in future periods by a portion of the future
distributions (the "reduction feature") in accordance with the Rights Plan. See “Trust Unit Incentive Plan and
Trust Unit Incentive Rights Plan” below. The reduction feature reduces the exercise price by the amount, if
any, that cash distributions in any calendar quarter exceed 2.5% of APF's net book value of property, plant and
equipment. The above values for unexercised in-the-money options assume that no such election for reduction
is exercised.

Performance Chart

The following graph and table compare the change in the cumulative Unitholder return from December 31,
1997 until December 31, 2002, of a $100 investment in Trust Units with the cumulative total return of the
S&P/TSX Composite Index and the TSX Oil & Gas Producers Index, assuming the reinvestment of
dividends/distributions, where applicable, for the comparable period.
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The Total Unitholder Return is shown in the following graph. Details of the distributions are as follows:

Payment Period Amount
January 1 to December 31, 1998 $1.840
January 1 to December 31, 1999 $1.555
January 1 to December 31, 2000 $1.900
January 1 to December 31, 2001 $3.045
January 1 to December 31, 2002 $1.800
TOTAL $10.140
INDEX DEC. 31/97 | DEC. 31/98 | DEC. 31/99 | DEC. 31/00 | DEC. 31/01 DEC. 31/02
APF Energy Trust $100 $104 $121 $159 $192 $210
S & P /TSX Composite $100 398 $130 $139 $122 $107
TSX Oil & Gas Producers $100 $70 $85 $125 $129 $150
Total Return Index Values
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REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS OF APF

For the year ended December 31, 2002, the Chairman of APF was paid an annual retainer of $10,000 and $250
per board meeting (for conference calls, $1,000 if the meeting exceeded one hour and $250 in any other case)
and $500 per committee meeting attended, plus expenses of attending such meetings. Each of the other
non-management Directors of APF received an annual retainer of $5,000. Payment for attendance at meetings
and expenses of attending such meetings were payable on the same basis as for the Chairman. In the fiscal
year of the Trust ended December 31, 2002, a total of $65,750 in fees was paid to the non-management
Directors of APF.

INDEBTEDNESS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR OFFICERS AND OTHERS

There is not now, nor was there any indebtedness outstanding from Directors or Officers of APF or Directors
or senior Officers of the Manager or the Trustee to the Trust or APF at any time in the last fiscal year.

COMPOSITION OF THE COMPENSATION COMMITTEE

The Board of Directors of APF has appointed a compensation committee that is comprised of Donald Engle
and Daniel Mercier, two of the Directors elected by the Unitholders, and Steven Cloutier, one of the Directors
elected by the Manager for the year ended December 31, 2002.

REPORT OF THE COMPENSATION COMMITTEE
Executive Compensation

Pre-internalization

Until recently, the conventional structure of oil and gas trusts was comprised of three entities: a trust (the units
of which are publicly traded on a stock exchange), which by contract receives a royalty on oil and gas
production from an operating corporation; the operating corporation, which owns the underlying oil and gas
assets; and a private corporate which manages the trust and the operating corporation, and which provides all
of the employees and services required for the trust and the operating corporation to carry on business. In turn,
the managers charged fees for providing these services. ‘

In APF's case, the public entity (the Trust) receives a royalty from APF, and until recently both were managed
by a private corporation (the Manager).

During 2002, a number of trusts "internalized" management. These transactions saw the public trusts, either
directly or indirectly, purchase the shares of the management companies and thereby eliminate all management
fees. APF internalized its management on January 3, 2003. Since then, several other trusts have either
announced or completed internalization transactions.

Pre-internalization, the Manager was a private corporation whose Directors were responsible for fixing the
compensation of its employees and the cost of providing the services of a highly-skilled staff was charged back
by the Manager and recorded on the income statement under "general and administrative expenses", or
"G&A". Post-internalization, with the elimination of the Manager, all staff have become direct employees of
APF.

Post-internalization
Post-internalization, all staff are employees of APF. APF is a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Trust, and

currently has a majority of independent Directors, elected by the Unitholders. Because 2003 represents the
_ first year of operations with internalized management, the Board of Directors of APF as a whole resolved to




13

review the issue of employee compensation, rather than delegating the responsibility to the Compensation
Committee. Going forward, it is expected that the Compensation Committee will have primary responsibility
for this function and make recommendations to the board.

The independent members of the APF Board of Directors determined that one of the objectives of the
internalization should be a go-forward compensation structure that placed APF employees at median industry
levels, based on the oil and gas industry as a whole, for base salary, with the opportunity for top-quartile total
compensation through a short-term incentive plan ("STIP"). As the Trust has been one of the industry's best
performers since inception, the independent members of the APF Board wanted to ensure total employee
compensation provided a strong incentive to continue to generate strong returns.

In order to have access to additional resources, the Board of Directors of APF retained an independent
consulting firm in late 2002 to provide advice in helping to determine a range of compensation levels. In
particular, the mandate of the consultants was to review executive compensation.

After considering the objectives of the internalization, relevant data from the independent consulting firm and
other sources of compensation information, the independent members of the APF Board approved 2003
compensation and implemented a new STIP, the first payment under which, if any, will be made in early 2004.

Base Salary

All APF employees receive base salaries commensurate with industry standards. APF has six named Executive
Officers, as that term is defined by the Securities Act, Ontario. In the case of the Chief Executive Officer and
President, each will earn a base 2003 salary of $245,000. In the case of the four Vice Presidents, each will
earn a base 2003 salary of $168,000. The independent members of the Board of APF were responsible for
fixing the salaries of the officers, while the salaries of the staff were fixed by management. Pre-internalization,
the Manager was responsible for setting the salaries of all its officers and employees.

Based on current levels, it is expected at 2003 salaries will amount to approximately $4.4 million.

STIP

The intent of the independent members of the APF Board of Directors was to create a STIP that might allow
base employee compensation to move from the industry median to top quartile, if APF generated strong
returns for Unitholders. The result was the creation of a STIP that (a) encourages and rewards outstanding
employee performance; (b) ensures that the STIP properly aligns the interests of Unitholders and employees;
(c) recognizes that all employees should benefit at a base level and participate in a bonus pool; and
(d) recognizes that increased responsibility and superior performance at more senior levels should also be
rewarded through a performance bonus.

No bonuses will be payable unless the Trust generates at least a 10% total return. If the threshold is met, then
a portion of net operating income ("NOI") is allocated to a bonus pool, which will be shared by all employees.
The percentage of NOI paid into the pool will increase as total return increases.

Had the new STIP been implemented during 2002, and based on a total return of approximately 18%, there
would have been $572,000 paid into the bonus pool.

More senior employees, including the officers, may also be eligible to receive performance bonuses, based on
criteria applicable to each individual's responsibilities and the degree to which the employee has distinguished
him or herself. Performance bonuses are only paid if the minimum 10% total return threshold is met. The
bonuses are entirely discretionary and must be approved by the Board of Directors of APF.
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Group RRSP/Savings Plan

In 2001, the Manager implemented a group RRSP whereby officers and employees were eligible to receive up
to 5% of base salary by way of a matching contribution to a group RRSP, subject to certain limits. The plan
has been carried over post-internalization, and expanded to encompass a savings component, for those
employees who do not wish to contrtbute to an RRSP.

Based on current participation and salary levels, it is expected that 2003 contributions by APF will amount to
approximately $200,000.

Long-term Incentive Plan ("LTIP")

APF has an LTIP that is a combination of two plans: one originally created when the Trust was formed in
1996; and another in 2001, in response to the evolution of the oil and gas royalty trust industry.

The first plan (the "Old Plan") is a conventional option plan, whereby options to acquire Trust Units were
issued at the then current market price. The options vested in one-third increments on the first, second and
third anniversaries of their grant. Since inception, 546,723 such options have been granted of which 221,193
have been exercised and 115,109 have been cancelled.

In 2001, APF ceased granting options under the Old Plan, after Unitholders approved a Trust Unit rights
incentive plan (the "New Plan"). Unlike many public issuers, APF did not re-price and merge the two plans;
rather, the old plan was frozen. The New Plan was similar to the Old Plan, except that the strike price of the
right may be reduced, at the election of the holder, in accordance with a formula linked to Unitholder
distributions and book value of assets. Otherwise, there is the same one-third vesting rule. The first grant
under the New Plan was made in March of 2002. During the year, a total of 441,233 rights were granted under
“the New Plan. As of the date hereof, 25,914 have been exercised and 14,400 have been cancelled.

Under the LTIP and among both plans, therefore, at December 31, 2002, a total of 987,956 rights and options
had been granted, of which 200,359 have been exercised and 114,235 have been cancelled. Based on
22,942,417 Trust Units outstanding at December 31, 2002, the 987,956 rights and options outstanding
represent 4.3% of the float.

As part of the 2003 compensation, the independent members of the APF Board of Directors have approved a
further grant of rights to Officers, Directors and employees. A total of 1,324,560 rights under the New Plan
were granted, the exercise of which is subject to Unitholder ratification, bringing the total number of
outstanding rights to 1,935,900 or 6.0% of the current float. Because the Trust is only authorized to issue up to
800,000 rights and options (which represents only approximately 2.5% of the float), Unitholder approval will
be sought at the upcoming Meeting to increase the maximum number of rights issuable. If Unitholder
approval is not obtained, APF intends to implement a plan that will contain substantially all of the terms and
conditions of the New Plan, except that the exercise of options will result in APF making a cash payment to
the holder equal to the difference between the strike price and the market price, with the benefit being
considered employment income.

Employment Agreements

All of the officers have entered into employment agreements with APF. Among the principal terms contained

therein are provisions which call for a severance payment if the officer's employment is terminated without

cause. The provisions also apply if there is a change in control of the Trust. In the case of the Chief Executive

Officer and the President, each is entitled to receive a payment equal to the aggregate of two times the

preceding year's base salary, STIP payment and benefits. In the case of the Vice Presidents, each is entitled to

receive a payment equal to the aggregate of one times the preceding year's base salary, STIP payment and
benefits.




15

Director Compensation

The APF Board of Directors is currently composed of five individuals, and it is proposed that it be increased to
six. Of the six, four Directors are unrelated to management. As a result of the internalization, it is proposed
that all six Directors will be elected by Unitholders at the Meeting. In prior years, Unitholders had the right
only to appoint a majority of the Director of APF.

The addition of the sixth Director comes after a period of dramatic growth for APF. Since inception in late
1996, the APF Board of Directors has comprised the same five individuals, who have had to assume increased
responsibility as APF expanded its operations, growing daily production from 1,600 boe to more than 12,000
boe.

Consistent with public company practice, the unrelated members of the APF board were compensated for the
time they dedicated to the supervision of APF's affairs. No compensation has ever been paid to management
appointees to the board. Compensation came. in the form of an annual retainer, together with fees for meetings,
as well as options to acquire Trust Units. The compensation rates for unrelated Directors had not changed
since inception. In aggregate, APF's unrelated Directors received $65,750 in fees during 2002 ($56,000 in
2001), and were granted options to acquire 15,000 Trust Units (35,000 in 2001). '

Recognizing the ever increasing responsibilities of the APF Board, as well as the prevailing compensation
rates for Directors of public entities, APF has adjusted Board compensation. Commencing January 1, 2003,
each unrelated Director will receive an annual retainer of $35,000, with the Chairman receiving an additional
$15,000 per annum. Fees for the preparation and attendance at meetings of the Board or of committees (other
than monthly meetings to review and fix the proposed cash distribution) are $2,000 per Director, per meeting.
Fees for the monthly meetings to review and fix the proposed cash distribution are $500 per Director, per
meeting.

APF believes that this level of compensation is reasonable given the complexity of APF's business, the time
commitment required of each unrelated Director and the prevailing market for highly qualified oil and gas and
business professionals.

This report is furnished by the Compensation Committee.

Donald Engle
Daniel Mercier
Steven Cloutier

TRUST UNIT INCENTIVE PLAN AND TRUST UNIT INCENTIVE RIGHTS PLAN (the "Option Plan"
and "Rights Plan' respectively)

The Board of Directors of APF approved a trust unit incentive plan for Directors, Officers, employees and
consultants of APF which currently permits the granting of options to purchase up to a maximum of §00,000
-Trust Units. The number of options and the exercise price thereof is set by the Board of Directors of APF at
the time of grant provided that the exercise price shall not be less than the closing market price of the Trust
Units on the day immediately preceding the date of grant. Options granted under the Option Plan may be
exercised during a period not exceeding five years, subject to earlier termination upon an optionee ceasing to
be a Director, Officer, employee or consultant of APF or upon an optionee retiring, becoming permanently
disabled or dying. The options are non-transferable and non-assignable. No further options will be granted
under the Option Plan.

By resolution of the Board of Directors of APF effective February 1, 1998, the Option Plan was amended to
_provide that, in lieu of immediate vesting, options shall vest as to one-third in the year following the
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anniversary date of the grant and as to a further one-third in each of the second and third years following the
anniversary date of the grant. '

There are currently options to purchase 210,421 Trust Units issued and outstanding under the Option Plan.
They are granted at prices from $7.15 to $9.70 and expire between February 2004 and February 2006. No new
options will be granted.

On June 6, 2001, the Unitholders approved the creation of the Rights Plan and it has been implemented by the
Board of Directors.

At present, the Rights Plan has a maximum of 368,386 Trust Units. The number of rights and the exercise
price is set by the Board of Directors of APF at the time of grant, provided that the exercise price shall not be
less than the closing market price of the Trust Units on the day immediately preceding the date of grant.

Distributions per Trust Unit to Unitholders in a calendar quarter which represent a return of more than 2.5% of
the Trust's net book capital assets at the end of such calendar quarter result in a downward reduction in the
exercise price of the rights at the election of the holder of rights by notice to APF at the time of exercise of the
right. The Rights Plan will be administered by the Board of Directors who may also vary the 2.5% threshold
from time to time to accord with their view of the economic environment, establish a minimum price for the
issuance of Trust Units on the exercise of the rights and extend the exercise period of any rights to a period not
exceeding ten years.

Rights granted under the Rights Plan may be exercised during a period not exceeding ten years, subject to
earlier termination upon a holder of rights ceasing to be a Director, Officer, employee or a consultant of APF.
The rights are non-transferable and non-assignable. The rights vest over a three-year period, with one-third of
the rights vesting at the end of each year, and under certain other limited circumstances.

There are currently rights to purchase 1,725,479 Trust Units granted under the Rights Plan, of which the
issuance and exercise of 1,383,007 rights is subject to ratification by Unitholders. They were granted at prices
from $9.67 to $10.80 and expire between March 2012 and April 2013, See “Matters to be Acted Upon at the
Meeting — Exercise of Rights”.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
General

The TSX Committee on Corporate Governance in Canada has issued a series of guidelines for effective
corporate governance (the “Guidelines”). The Guidelines address matters such as the constitution and
independence of corporate boards, the functions to be performed by boards and their committees and the
effectiveness and education of board members. The TSX has adopted as a listing requirement an obligation of
disclosure by each listed entity of its approach to corporate governance with reference to the Guidelines.

APF’s Board of Directors and management support the Guidelines for corporate governance. The approach
taken by APF, on behalf of the Trust to corporate governance and compliance with the Guidelines is as
follows:
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Corporate Governance Guidelines Thg Trust's Comments
Alignment
1. The Board should explicitly assume Yes The Board of Directors of APF (the "Board")

responsibility for stewardship and
specifically for:

(a) adoption of a strategic planning process

(b) identification of principal risks and the
implementation of appropriate risk-
management systems

(c) succession planning and monitoring
senior management

(d) communications policy

(e) integrity of internal control and
management information systems

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

expressly accepts responsibility for the stewardship
of the Trust to the extent delegated to APF under the
Trust Indenture. In general terms, the Board, in
consultation with the chief executive officer of APF
(the "CEO"), defines the principal objectives of the
Trust and monitors the management of the business
and affairs of the Trust with the goal of achieving
the Trust's principal objectives.

A strategic planning process has been adopted by
the Board. Each year, the Board meets to review
APF’s business and operations in the context of
broader industry and capital market developments.
Given the rapid growth of APF’s asset base, the
Board supplements these annual meetings with bi-
annual meetings where senior management provide
detailed information and analysis on APF’s past
performance, current initiatives and anticipated
projects. The plan is reviewed annually once APF’s
independent engineering report is finalized and its
operating and financial results have been released.

The Board has identified the principal risks of APF
and the Trust. Risk-management systems have been
implemented and are monitored, by the Audit
Committee in respect of internal financial controls,
and the Board as a whole for other aspects of the
business, such as commodity, foreign exchange and
interest rate risks.

The Board has established succession planning as
one of the objectives of the CEOQ. The performance
of senior management is currently monitored by the
Board.

The Board has designated the President, the CEO
and the Vice President, Finance as spokesmen for
the Trust to ensure effective communication
between the Trust, Unitholders, the public and
regulatory agencies. The Audit Committee reviews
public financial information for recommendation to
the Board for approval prior to its release.

The Board ensures the integrity of internal control
and management information systems through its
delegation to the Audit Committee. The Audit
Committee reviews the methods of controlling
corporate assets and information systems and
oversees the financial reporting process in
accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles.
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The Trust's

Corporate Governance Guidelines Alignment

Comments

2. Majority of directors are unrelated and how  Yes Of the six present and proposed directors, four are

the conclusion was reached

Appoint a committee responsible for
appointment/assessment of directors,
composed of a majority of unrelated
directors ‘

Implement a process for assessing the
effectiveness of the Board, its committees
and individual directors

Provide orientation and education programs
for new directors

Consider the size of the Board, with a view
to improving effectiveness

Review compensation of directors in light of
risks and responsibilities

Committees should generally be composed
of non-management directors; and the
majority of committee members should be
unrelated

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

unrelated. The unrelated directors comply with the
definition in the Guidelines, which define an
unrelated director as a director who is independent
of management and is free from any interest and any
business or other relationship which could, or could
reasonably be perceived to, materially interfere with
the director's ability to act with a view to the best
interests of the Trust, other than interests arising
from securityholdings. The Chairman of the Board
is one of the unrelated directors.

A committee has not been appointed, these duties
are currently being undertaken generally by the
Board and specifically by the Chairman, who is
unrelated to management.

The Board performs this function on an ongoing
basis with the assistance of such outside consultants
as are required.

All current Board members are provided with
regular information specific to APF, as well as
continuing education material that touches on a
number of relevant topics, such as: commodity
markets; risk management; and corporate
governance. '

The present Board consists of five members.
Recently, the Board has proposed expanding to six,
with the nomination of the five incumbents and the
new member put forward for selection at the
Meeting. The Board will assess, from time to time,
whether further expansion is warranted.

Effective January 1, 2003, the compensation of the
unrelated Directors was adjusted to reflect increased
risks and responsibilities. The quantum was
determined in the context of compensation rates for
Directors of similarly sized public entities, as well as
on data provided by an independent compensation
consultant. This represented the first adjustment
since the Trust’s inception in 1996. The Board will
assess, from time to time, whether further
adjustments are warranted, having reference again to
compensation rates for Directors of similarly sized
public entities, as well as on data provided by an
mdependent compensation consultants.

The Reserves Committee is composed entirely of
unrelated Directors. The Compensation and Audit
Committees are currently composed of a majority of

~unrelated Directors. It is intended that following the

Meeting, the Audit Committee will be constituted
entirely of unrelated Directors.
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The Trust's

Corporate Governance Guidelines ) Comments
Alignment
9. Appoint a committee responsible for Yes The Audit Committee is currently responsible for
determining the Corporation’s approach to governance issues, including recommending to the
corporate governance issues Board for approval the Trust’s disclosures in
response to the TSX governance guidelines.
10. Define limits to management’s Yes

responsibilities by developing mandates for:

(a) the Board ‘ Yes The Board has a broad responsibility for supervising
the management of the business and affairs of APF.
It has the statutory authority and . obligation to
protect and enhance the assets of APF in the interest

of all Unitholders. -
(b) the Chief Executive Officer Yes The annual business plan based on the strategic plan
is reviewed by the Board annually and updated at
The Board should approve the Chief regular Board meetings. Upon approval, this
Executive Officer’s corporate objectives becomes the mandate of the CEO and President.

11. Establish procedures to enable the Board to Yes Through the office of the Chairman, who is
function independently of management unrelated to management, the independent members
' of the Board may initiate discussions and proposals

for consideration by the Board as a whole.

12. Establish an Audit Committee with a Yes The Audit Committee, which is composed of a
specifically defined mandate, with all majority of outside and unrelated Directors, has a
members being outside directors written mandate from the Board. It is responsible

for reviewing audit functions and recommending for
approval to the Board all public disclosure
information such as financial statements, quarterly
reports, financial news releases and annual
information forms. It makes inquiries to ensure that
management has effective intermal control systems
in place and meets with the auditors with and
without management present.

13. Implement a system to enable individual Yes Individual Directors may engage outside advisors at
directors to engage outside advisors at the any time subject to the approval of the Chairman.
Corporation’s expense

DISTRIBUTION REINVESTMENT PLAN

Effective August 1, 1997, the Trust implemented an Automatic Distribution Reinvestment Plan ("ADRP") to
provide holdérs of Trust Units with a means to automatically reinvest sums received on accounts of
distributions on Trust Units. Computershare Trust Company of Canada, as Plan Agent (as successor to The
Trust Company of Bank of Montreal), may purchase Trust Units through the facilities of the TSX out of
distributions paid to it or may purchase Trust Units of the Trust from treasury. Holders of approximately 1%

- of the issued and outstanding Trust Units are currently participating in the ADRP. The Plan Agent purchases
Trust Units as agent for participants in the ADRP, through the facilities of the TSX out of distributions paid to
it, at prices not exceeding 110% of the closing market price of at least a board lot of Trust Units on the
applicable date of distribution. No Trust Units have, to date, been issued from treasury of the Trust on account
of the ADRP.
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. A participant may terminate participation in the ADRP at any time by written notice to the Plan Agent, being
Computershare Trust Company of Canada, 1500 University Street, Montreal, Quebec, H3A 3S8.

INTEREST OF INSIDERS IN MATERIAL TRANSACTIONS

There were no material interests, direct or indirect, of Directors and senior Officers of APF, nominees for
Director of APF, any Unitholder who beneficially owns more than 10% of the Trust Units of the Trust, or any
known associate or affiliate of such persons in any transaction in the year ending December 31, 2002, or in any
proposed transaction which has materially affected or would materially affect the Trust or APF other than as
disclosed herein, except with respect to the internalization of management, which was described in the
information circular of the Trust dated November 18, 2002. '

INTEREST OF CERTAIN PERSONS AND COMPANIES IN MATTERS TO BE ACTED UPON

APF is not aware of any material interest of any Director, nominee for Director or Officer of APF or any one
who has held office as such in the year ending December 31, 2002, or of any associate or affiliate of any of the
foregoing in respect of any matter to be acted on at the Meeting, except as specifically provided herein.

OTHER MATTERS

APF knows of no amendment, variation or other matter to come before the Meeting other than the matters
referred to in the Notice of Annual General and Special Meeting. However, if any other matter properly comes
before the Meeting, the accompanying proxy will be voted on such matter in accordance with the best
judgment of the person or persons voting the proxy.

APPROVAL AND CERTIFICATION

The contents and sending of this Information Circular - Proxy Statement have been approved by the Board of
Directors of APF on behalf of the Trust.

The foregoing contains no untrue statement of a material fact and does not omit to state a material fact that is
required to be stated or that is necessary to make a statement not misleading in light of the circumstances in
which it was made.

DATED May 12, 2003

APF ENERGY TRUST
By: APF Energy Inc.

(Signed) Martin Hislop (Signed) Alan MacDonald
Chief Executive Officer ‘ Chief Financial Officer




SCHEDULE "A"
A. Trustee Re-Appointment Resolution

BE IT RESOLVED THAT Computershare Trust Company of Canada be appointed as the Trustee of the Trust,
until the termination of the Trust or until the Trustee resigns or is removed or replaced, in accordance with the
provisions of the trust indenture by which the Trust was established.

B. Rights Exercise Resolution

BE IT RESOLVED THAT the issuance and exercise of 1,383,007 rights issued in excess of the number of
Trust Units issuable under the Trust Unit Incentive Rights Plan of the Trust be and it is hereby ratified and
approved.

C. Trust Unit Incentive Rights Plan Amendment Resolution

BE IT RESOLVED THAT:

1. The Trust Unit Incentive Rights Plan be amended, as described in the Information Circular of the
Trust dated May 12, 2003, to increase the maximum number of Trust Units issuable under the Plan
from 368,386 to 2,600,000.

2. Any Director or Officer of APF be and is hereby authorized, for and on behalf of the Trust, to execute

and deliver such documents and instruments and take such other actions as such Director or Officer
may determine to be necessary or advisable to implement this resolution and the matters authorized
hereby, such determination to be conclusively evidenced by the execution and delivery of any such
documents or instruments and the taking of any such actions. '

D. Royalty Agreement Amendment Resolution
BE IT RESOLVED AS A SPECIAL RESOLUTION THAT:

1. The Royalty Agreement between APF and Computershare Trust Company of Canada on behalf of the
Trust be and it is hereby amended to delete the "Restrictions on Future Acquisitions”, being Section
2.9 of the Royalty Agreement.

2. The Trustee and the Board of Directors of APF be and they are hereby authorized to settle the form of
the amendments to the Royalty Agreement in accordance with the foregoing resolution and to effect
all such further or consequential amendments to the Royalty Agreement and other relevant agreements
as they may consider necessary or desirable to give effect to and fully carry out the intent of the
foregoing resolutions.

E. Unitholders’ Rights Plan Resolution

BE IT RESOLVED THAT the implementation by the Trust of the Unitholders’ Rights Plan Agreement dated
as of April 19, 2003 with Computershare Trust Company of Canada as rights agent, pursuant to which one
Right (as defined therein) is issued effective April 19, 2003 in respect of each outstanding Trust Unit of record
at 5:00 p.m. (Calgary time) on April 19, 2003 and in respect of each Trust Unit issued thereafier until the
.earlier of the expiry of such agreement, the date on which the right to exercise the Rights terminates and the




Separation Time (as defined therein), on and subject to the terms as more particularly set forth in the
Unitholders’ Rights Plan Agreement, be and the same is hereby ratified, confirmed and approved.

F. Shareholder Agreement Resolution

BE IT RESOLVED AS A SPECIAL RESOLUTION THAT the Unanimous Shareholder Agreement originally
entered into among the Trustee, APF Energy Management Inc. and APF be terminated effective June 11, 2003,




SCHEDULE "B"
UNITHOLDERS’ RIGHTS PLAN

At the Meeting, the Unitholders will be asked to consider a resolution ratifying and confirming a Unitholders’
Rights Plan Agreement made as of April 19, 2003 between the Trust and Computershare Trust Company of
Canada, as rights agent (the “URP”).

By resolution of the board of directors of APF dated effective April 19, 2003, the URP was adopted to become
effective on such date, as a renewal of the rights plan adopted in 1999, with certain amendments. The URP has
been conformed to those recently adopted by a number of other Canadian corporations and trusts. The Board
of Directors of APF unanimously recommended the adoption of the URP on behalf of the Trust.

A take-over bid, in accordance with provincial securities legislation, generally means an offer- made to
Unitholders to acquire securities that, if combined with securities already owned by the bidder and certain related
parties, would exceed 20% of the issued securities of the target corporation.

Under current legislation, a take-over bid may expire in 35 days. The board of directors determined that this may
not be sufficient time for Unitholders to obtain sufficient information to consider a bid and form a reasoned
decision. The board of directors also was concerned that all Unitholders have an equal opportunity to participate
in the bid.

The board of directors of APF believes that the URP addresses these concerns. The URP provides for a
"Permitted Bid" (described below), being one which must not expire for 60 days.

The URP is not intended to prevent a take-over or deter fair offers for the securities of the Trust and does not
affect the duty of the board of directors to carefully and properly consider any offer that is made and to act
honestly, in good faith and in the best interest of the Trust and Unitholders. Rather, it is designed to encourage
anyone seeking to acquire control of the Trust to make an offer that represents fair value to all Unitholders, to
allow Unitholders sufficient time to consider the offer and to permit the board of directors of APF, where
appropriate, to explore, develop and evaluate alternatives to maximize the value to Unitholders.

Summary

The terms "Separation Time", "Expiration Time", "Flip-in Event", "Permitted Bid" and "Acquiring Person" used
in the following summary are defined in the disclosure respecting the URP which follows this summary.

To implement the URP, the board of directors authorized the issue effective April 19, 2003 of one right (a
"Right"} in respect of each outstanding Trust Unit to holders of record at 5:00 p.m. (Calgary time) on April 19,
2003 (the "Record Time"). One Right will also be issued in respect of each Trust Unit issued after the Record
Time and prior to the earlier of the Separation Time and the Expiration Time. The Trust has entered into the
Unitholders' Rights Plan Agreement dated as of April 19, 2003 with Computershare Trust Company of Canada,
as rights agent, regarding the exercise of the Rights, the issue of certificates evidencing the Rights and other
related matters. The URP will continue in effect only if confirmed by the Unitholders at the Meeting, by a
majority vote. :

The Rights are not exercisable initially and certificates representing the Rights will not be sent to Unitholders.
Until the Separation Time (being generally the tenth day after a bidder has acquired or commences a bid to
acquire 20% or more of the voting securities of the Trust, other than by a Permitted Bid), the Rights will be
transferred with the associated Trust Units. The Rights will become exercisable and begin to trade separately
from the associated units at the close of business on the Separation Time.




Following a transaction which is a Flip-in Event (generally, the acquisition by a person or a group acting in
concert of 20% or more of the Trust Units of the Trust), the Rights entitle their holders (other than the Acquiring
Person, a transferee of the Acquiring Person and certain related parties) to receive, upon exercise, Trust Units
with a market value equal to twice the exercise price of the Right.

The effect of triggering the Rights is to cause a significant dilution of the holdings of a bidder. The bidder can
avoid the dilutive effect of the URP by making a bid in accordance with the Permitted Bid provisions.

Amendments

Certain amendments were made in the URP, from the plan that had been in place since 1999, generally to remove
discretion given to the board of directors that may have precluded a bid from going forward to Unitholders for
consideration and to add an exemption to the definition of “beneficial ownership” for Trust Units subject to a
“permitted lock-up agreement”.

Terms of the URP
The following is a summary of the terms of the URP.
() The Rights

The URP provides that the Rights will not be exercisable until the close of business on the tenth day (the
"Separation Time") after the earlier of:

) the first date of a public announcement that a person or a group of affiliated or associated
persons (an "Acquiring Person") has acquired beneficial ownership of 20% or more of the
outstanding Trust Units other than as a result of certain circumstances specified in the URP,
including:

(A) a reduction of the number of Trust Units outstanding;

(B) a "Permitted Bid Acquisition";

©) acquisitions of Trust Units as a result of certain pro rata transactions;

D) distributions by the Trust pursuant to a distribution investment plan, specified
prospectus offerings, specified private placements or specified exercises of convertible

securities; or

(E) in other manners with respect to which the board of directors of APF has waived the
application of certain aspects of the URP, in accordance with the URP; and

(ii) the commencement of, or public announcement of an intention of a person to make an
acquisition of Trust Units pursuant to a take-over bid that would result in the beneficial
ownership by a person or a group of affiliated or associated persons of 20% or more of the
outstanding Trust Units; and

(i11) the date upon which a Permitted Bid or Competing Permitted Bid ceases to be such,

or such later date as may be determined by the board of directors of APF.

Certificates for Trust Units issued after the Record Time but before the earlier of the Separation Time and the
Expiration Time will contain a notation incorporating the Unitholders' Rights Plan Agreement by reference.




Promptly following the Separation Time, separate certificates evidencing Rights ("Rights Certificates”) will be
mailed to the holders of record of Trust Units as of the Separation Time and the Rights Certificates alone will
evidence the Rights.

Rights will expire on the termination of the annual meeting of Unitholders in the year 2008 (the "Expiration
Time") unless earlier redeemed by the Trust. Unitholder approval will be required to reconfirm the Unitholders'
Rights Plan Agreement at the first annual meeting of Unitholders after a period of three years from the date of the
Unitholders' Rights Plan Agreement. The exercise price payable for the Rights and the number of securities
issuable upon the exercise of the Rights are subject to adjustment from time to time by the board of directors of
APF, in accordance with the provisions of the Unitholders' Rights Plan Agreement, to prevent dilution upon the
occurrence of certain events affecting the Trust Units or in other events that the board of directors of APF, acting
on good faith judgment, determines would require an adjustment.

Until a Right is exercised, the holder thereof, as such, will have no rights as a Unitholder of the Trust, including,
without limitation, the right to vote or receive distributions. The Trust will receive no proceeds from the issuance
of Rights.

Following a transaction that results in a person becoming an Acquiring Person (a Flip-in Event), the Rights will
entitle their holders to receive, upon exercise, Trust Units with a market value equal to twice the exercise price of
the Rights. In such event, however, any Rights beneficially owned by an Acquiring Person (including such
person's associates and affiliates and any person acting jointly or in concert therewith and any direct or indirect
transferee of such persons) will be void. A Flip-in Event does not include acquisitions pursuant to a Permitted
Bid or a Competing Permitted Bid (see below).

- A person will not become an Acquiring Person by virtue of entering into a “Permitted Lock-Up Agreement”,
which in essence is an agreement by a Unitholder to tender Trust Units to a take-over bid, provided the agreement
meets certain requirements. These requirements are essentially that (a) the terms of the agreement are publicly
disclosed and a copy of the agreement is publicly available, (b) the Unitholder who has agreed to tender shares to
the take-over bid made by the other party to the agreement (the "lock-up bid") be allowed to terminate its
obligations under the agreement in order to tender the Trust Units to another take-over bid or support another
transaction where the offer price under the other bid or transaction is equal to or greater than a specified minimum
which is not more than 7% higher than the offer price under the lock-up bid, and (c) no break-up fees or other
penalties that exceed in the aggregate the greater of 2 1/2% of the price or value payable under the lock-up bid and
50% of the increase in the consideration resulting from another take-over bid or transaction, shall be payable by the
Unitholder if the Unitholder fails to tender its Trust Units to the lock-up bid.

At any time prior to a Flip-in Event, the board of directors of APF with the consent of Unitholders, may redeem
all, but not less than all, of the Rights at a price of $0.0001 per Right, as adjusted in accordance with the URP. In
addition, if a bidder successfully completes a Permitted Bid or Competing Permitted Bid, then the board of
directors shall be deemed to have elected to redeem the Rights at the redemption price.

(b) Permitted Bid

Similar to most of the rights plans that have been implemented in Canada, the URP employs a "Permitted Bid"
concept whereby a take-over bid will not trigger the Rights if it meets certain pre-determined standards of
fairness. To qualify as a Permitted Bid, the take-over bid must meet the following requirements. It must be made
by means of a take-over bid circular to all holders of Trust Units on substantially identical terms. The bidder
must agree that the bid will not expire prior to the close of business 60 days following the date of the bid and that
50% of the Trust Units of Independent Unitholders (described below) shall have been deposited pursuant to the
bid and not withdrawn, and in such event a public announcement to that effect must be made and the bid must
remain open for deposits and tenders of Trust Units for a further 10 days.




The URP allows for a competing Permitted Bid (a "Competing Permitted Bid") to be made while a Permitted Bid
is in existence. A Competing Permitted Bid must satisfy all the requirements of a Permitted Bid except that it
may expire on the same date as the Permitted Bid, subject to the requirement that it be outstanding for a minimum
period of 35 days. The reduction in the time for acceptance of a Competing Permitted Bid is to allow, as nearly
as practicable, all bids to be dealt with by the Unitholders within substantially the same time frame.

(c) Grandfathered Person

The Unitholders' Rights Plan Agreement provides that a person who beneficially owns more than 20% of the
outstanding Trust Units as at the Record Time, will be "grandfathered" (such a person is referred to herein as a
"Grandfathered Person™) and, accordingly will not be deemed to be an Acquiring Person. A Grandfathered
Person will cease to be grandfathered if the Grandfathered Person increases his beneficial ownership of Trust
Units, other than as a result of specified transactions, or as a result of pro rata acquisitions of Trust Units.

The Trust is not aware of any person who, at the Record Time, was a Grandfathered Person.

(d) Subsequent Amendments

The Unitholders' Rights Plan Agreement may be amended, prior to the date of the Meeting, by the board of
directors of APF where it is deemed by the board of directors that such action is necessary or desirable.
Thereafter, amendments require confirmation by the Unitholders except for amendments of a technical nature,
amendments required to maintain the validity and effectiveness of the URP and amendments required as a result
of changes in applicable laws or regulatory requirements.

(e) Exemptions for Investment Advisors

Investment advisors (for client accounts) and trust companies (acting in their capacities as trustees and
administrators) acquiring greater than 20% of the Trust Units are exempted from triggering a Flip-in Event,
_provided that they are not making, or are not part of a group making, a take-over bid.

43) Unitholder Approval

The adoption of the URP does not require Unitholder approval under the constating documents of the Trust..
However, in accordance with TSX requirements, the adoption of the URP must be confirmed by Unitholders at a
meeting of such Unitholders by the affirmative vote of a majority of the Trust Units voted by Unitholders present
in person or represented by proxy at the meeting.

In addition, the adoption of the URP must be confirmed by Unitholders by the affirmative vote of a majority of
the Trust Units voted by Unitholders other than any Unitholder which directly or indirectly on its own or in
concert with others, holds or exercises control over more than 20% of the Trust Units of the Trust and associates,
affiliates and insiders of such a person.

The foregoing summary of the URP is subject in every case to the particular provisions of the Unitho]deré'
Rights Plan Agreement, a copy of which may be obtained by Unitholders from the Trust, by contacting the
Secretary of APF at 2100, 144 — 4™ Avenue SW, Calgary, Alberta T2P 3N4.




SCHEDULE "C"

Restrictions on Future Acquisitions.

The Grantor will only make a Future Acquisition if, in its reasonable opinion, it satisfies the following criteria:

@

(b)

(c)

(d
(e)

®

(2

GY)

the aggregate purchase price of all Properties acquired in the Future Acquisition shall not
exceed the undiscounted aggregate projected net cash flow from Established Reserves
associated with such Properties over the first seven years from the date of their purchase;

all Properties acquired in any Future Acquisition shall be purchased at a discount of estimated
future cash flows before income taxes that is no less than the lesser of: (i) 12%; and (ii) that

percentage that is the sum of the percentage yield of long-term Canadian bonds and 4%;

following such Future Acquisition, not more than 45% of the Asset Value of all Properties
will be attributable to a single reservoir;

at least 66 2/3% of the Asset Value of all Properties shall be represented by Proven Reserves;

at least 60% of the Asset Value of the Established Reserves of all Properties must have a
production history of at least three years;

the reserve life of the Properties acquired in the Future Acquisition will be greater than
10 years;

the purchase price payable pursuant to the Future Acquisition will be based on independent
engineering reports, unless:

) the Future Acquisition is from a single vendor acting at arm's length from the Grantor
and the purchase price of all Properties to be acquired by the Grantor pursuant
thereto is not in excess of the lesser of

1) $5,000,000; and

2) 10% of the Asset Value of the Properties immediately before such acquisition;

or
(i) the Future Acquisition is in areas in which the Grantor already has an interest and the

purchase price of all Properties to be acquired by the Grantor pursuant thereto is not
in excess of $5,000,000; and

annual Capital Expenditures associated with Properties acquired in the Acquisition will not
exceed 10% of the annual net cash flow from such Properties, unless such Capital
Expenditures are financed with borrowings or additional issuances of Trust Units.

The Grantor may rely on advice of the Manager in determining whether such criteria are satisfied.
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TRUST PROFILE

APF Energy Trust is a c::‘%“ JE%‘&'"":ZE, grwi’a rignisd, open-ended royalty trust
created in December 1996 to provide unitholders with siznie distributions based on cash

flow generated from high guality oil and gas properties located in Western Canada.

pupmnr g s RS £3 PO PPN e 5 8 4 M
acquisitions and effective cpilmization inRiatives, APF has

Through

increased production by more than‘@@@?’o, from 1,707 boe/d in the fourth quarter of

1996 to more than 12,000 boe/d at March 2003. Since completing its initial public

unit to March 2003, rewarding unitholders with an internal rate of return of 21%.

CONTENTS
2 - FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS . 33 MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
3 OPERATIONAL HIGH“LIGHTS 40 v 'MANAGEMENT'S REPORT
"4 MESSAGE TO UNITHOLDERS : ‘ 41 . AUDITORS’ REPORT
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8 CORE PROPERTIES - 46 NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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18 CORPQORATE DEVELOPMENT 57 OFFICERS AND DIRECTORS
23 OIL AND NATURAL GAS RESERVES 60 CORPORATE INFORMATION

25 CORPORATE REVIEW

ANNUAL AND SPECIAL MEETING

The annual and special meeting of unitholders of APF Energy Trust will be held on
Wednesday, June 11, 2003 at 3:00 p.m. in the Roxy Theatre at the Sun Life Conference
Center (mezzanine level), 140-4th Avenue S.W., Calgary, Alberta.




OUR WINNING FORMULA

Strong Acqursrtlons

: ‘-" f e Purchased Kinwest Resources |nc and Paddle River assets
| for aggregate consideration of $82.2 million
e Added production at $28,758 per flowing boe
e Ad‘dec‘t_reee‘rves at $7.80 per boe

and

._Ef,feCtiVe Development

.. Brought on production at $6,704 per ftowing'boe

6 Djeveloped producing reservesifat $6.26 per hoe

L. e Replaced 130% of productron through the

drrll bit and optlmrzatlon
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© Generated 18% total return.during the year .
S Paid out original $10 unit in five years

© Top quartile performer since inception-
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS -

REVENUE o ... DISTRIBUTIONS CUMULATIVE
($000) . S ($/unity S " DISTRIBUTIONS -
. ' T - © ($/unit)

305
1165
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199 1999 2000 2001 W02 . 19 1999 W00 0202 1997 1998 1999 2000 2001 2002

- {$o00 except per unit/boe amounts) 2002 2001 % Change
0 Revenue 04,021 69,924 34
E Per unit 4.59 5.56 (17)
= Net operating income 55,506 43,474 28
> Per unit 2.71 3.46 (22)
g Operating cash flow 43,788 33,995 29
w Per unit 2.14 2,70 (21)
ﬁ Net earnings 11,365 18,144 (37)
L Per unit 0.55 1.44 (62)
o Distributions 37,766 37,311 1
< Per unit 1.81 2.98 (39)
Operating costs per boe 6.35 6.15 3
Operating netbacks per boe 17.83 20.42 (13)
Bank debt 88,000 59,250 49
Market
Units outstanding (0co0)
End of period 22,042 15,584 47
Average 20,470 12,578 63
Trading
2 High ($) 11.19 - 13.40 (16)
Low ($) 9.00 8.75 3
Close ($) 9.79 9.85 (1)

Average daily volume 68,700 46,500 48




PRODUCTION
 (boe/e)”

375 354 368

: 1998 1999 2000 200 2002 .

. OPERATIONAL HIGHLIGHTS

. ESTABLISHED RESER\IE e

VOLUMES

110 B

1998 1999 2000 2001

ESTABLISHED RESERVE

3 ($0

- VALUES
00, NPV 10%)

“157,867

113,494

70,444 69,583

1998 1999 2000 2001 2002

2002 2001 % Change

Daily Production (Average)

0Oil (bbl) 5,307 3,167 68

Gas (mcf) 18,488 15,391 20

NGLs (bbl) 144 100 44

Total (boe) 8,532 5,832 46

Annual (mboe) 3,114 2,129 46
Production Split

Oil and NGlLs 64% 56% 14

Gas 36% 44% (18)
Commodity Prices ($)

Oil (bbl) 33.66 33.64 o

Gas (mcf) 3.83 4.94 (22)

NGLs (bbl) 25.15 30.97 (19)

Average (boe) 29.65 31.04 (7)
Established Reserves

Oil & NGLs (mbbi) 20,608 13,545 52

Gas (mmcf) 68,290 50,984 34

Total 31,989 22,042 45

Value discounted @ 10% ($000) 259,446 157,867 64

259,446
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MESSAGE TO UNITHOLDERS

Current market price (1) I0.47 10.47 1047 10.47 10.47 1047 10.47 1047  10.47

*—

o

0 2002 marked another successful year for APF. We applied our

o

w continued discipline of buying well and developing effectively and

T

4 generated a total return of 18%, bringing the Trust’s internal rate

< o . . .

N of return to 21%. This positions APF among the leaders in the Martin Hislop

z royalty trust sector. Chief Executive Officer

z

< Equity Issues ($) Dec-96 Dec-9g8 Mar-oo Mar-o1 Apr-or Jun-or Octor Feb-o2 May-02
g Issue price (10.00) (8.00) (730} (10.00) (10.05) (1150) (9.55) (9.75) (10.5)
o

o

Capital appreciation 0.47 2.47 3.17 0.47 0.42 (1.o3) o092 o072 0.32

Distributions declared (2) 1232 897 704 480 457 397 287 2.17 172

Total return 1279  IL44  10.2I 527 499 2064 359  2.89 2.04
Annualized IRR 21% 33%  47% 29%  28%  16%  20%  27% 24%

(1) Closing March 17, 2003

(2) From issue date to March 2003 declared distribution

CORPORATE DEVELOPMENT

During the year, APF’s Corporate Development team executed $90.1 million worth of acquisitions through
a combination of corporate and asset transactions. Building on the platform APF established in southeast
Saskatchewan in 2001, APF acquired Kinwest Resources and the assets of its joint venture partner in a

total transaction valued at $59.5 million. The acquisition added 2,000 boe/d of production in southeast

APF ENERGY TRUST

Saskatchewan and firmly established APF as a significant player in the area.

The other material transaction was the acquisition of gas assets at Paddle River, in central Alberta, for

$22.7 million in mid-December. In order to balance our growing oil production in southeast Saskatchewan

and to complement our production base in this gas-prone area, APF strategically targeted merger

and acquisition opportunities. The Paddle River property is in proximity to APF’s core properties at
. Sakwatamau and Redwater.

The net result of these activities was a strengthening of our light oil business in southeast Saskatchewan,
with a balanced expansion into gas assets in central Alberta.

APF’s two largest acquisitions, which accounted for $82.2 million or 91% of total acquisitions, were
purchased at an average price of $28,758 per flowing boe and $7.80 per boe in the ground, versus a two-
year industry average of $31,901 and $9.83, respectively. In short, APF continued to buy well.




During the latter part of the year APF divested approximately
$9.0 million of minor properties. These low working interest,
non-operated assets had average production of approximately
318 boe/d. These properties were divested at $28,300 per flowing
boe and $10.73 per boe in the ground.

Steven Cloutier
President and Chief Operating Officer

DRILLING AND OPTIMIZATION
The other component to the APF business plan was the continued effective development of our asset
base, a trait for which APF has become well known over the years. APF has the largest proportion of
operated properties among the royalty trust sector, at more than 9o%. We continued to initiate and
execute development and optimization strategies that allowed us, for the third consecutive year, to
entirely replace what we produced through low-risk drilling and other production enhancement
techniques. As a trust, we believe that unitholders place a high degree of importance on our ability to
maintain our asset base, as this secures the stability of distributions going forward.

Such an achievement is the result of three components: acquisition of assets that provide a quality
inventory of development opportunities; the retention of a portion of our cash flow to fund these
initiatives; and the high degree of skill brought to the table by APF’s technical team. These were the tools
that allowed us to effectively develop our asset base.

EQUITY FINANCINGS

In February 2002, APF completed a $31.7 million equity issue, taking advantage of strong demand for our
units. The Trust issued 3.25 million units at $9.75 per trust unit. The proceeds were initially used to repay
bank debt, and to provide a future source of funding for APF’s drilling program and acquisitions. Our
unitholders did not have to wait long to see their capital deployed. In April, APF announced the purchase
of Kinwest. As part of that transaction, APF also issued 3.39 million units at a deemed price of $10.15 per
trust unit to the shareholders of Kinwest and its joint venture partner.

In aggregate, the Trust raised $66.1 million of equity at an average price of $9.95 per unit in 2002.

I.NTERNALIZATION OF MANAGEMENT

During 2002, many trusts, including APF, began to review their management structures, specifically the way
in which third party managers were compensated. As a result, a number of trusts completed transactions
whereby the public entities purchased the shares of the private companies managing the business, thereby
eliminating all management fees. On October 30, APF Energy Trust announced that it had reached an
agreement with APF Energy Management Inc. (the “Manager”) to purchase all of the common shares of the
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APF ENERGY TRUST

Manager for $9.25 million, before adjustments for positive working capital. The transaction, which was voted
in favour by 97% of unitholders, closed on January 3, 2003. The trend has continued this year, with a number
of similar internalization transactions either completed or pending. The result for APF is a simplified
corporate structure,

OQUTLOOK

Going forward, the plan is to continue to apply the formula that has made APF one of the most successful
royalty trusts: to identify, evaluate and execute acquisitions that add value and opportunity. The challenge,
as it has always been, is to find the right ones. Currently, commodity prices are at high levels, making it
generally more difficult to find undervalued companies and properties. But that really does not represent
much of a departure from the environment that has existed since APF was created in late 1996. We are
still waiting for a buyer’s market.

We have always stated that APF will stay out of the merger and acquisition market if prices become
overheated and we are committed to retain that discipline. In the meantime, APF will harvest its inventory
of opportunities and strive to replace its production through the drill bit.

We want to thank our employees for their dedication and hard work during the year and our Board of
Directors for their guidance.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On February 5, 2003, APF completed the acquisition of Hawk Oil Inc., a Calgary-based gas-leveraged
producer with 2,700 boe of daily production, for a total cost of $49.8 million. The acquisition further
increased APF’s presence in the central Alberta gas trend, increasing daily production to approximately
12,500 boe and raising our gas weighting to about 43%. The purchase also came with approximately
32,000 net acres of undeveloped land and an extensive proprietary seismic database.

With the momentum created by the Hawk purchase, APF did not stay on the side lines for very long. On
March 10, 2003, we announced an agreement to purchase the shares of Nycan Energy Corp. which
closed on April 23, 2003 in a transaction valued at $41.9 million. With yet a further addition to APF’s gas
inventory, adjacent to our core property at Countess in southeast Alberta, the acquisition added
approximately 1,265 boe/d of production. To finance the all-cash purchase price, the Trust completed a
$55.1 million equity issue at $10.40 per unit. The financing closed on April 2, 2003 and resulted in the
issuance of 5.3 million units. At the time of printing this report, APF Energy Trust had 32.2 million units

outstanding.
Martin Hislop Steven Cloutier
Chief Executive Officer President and Chief Operating Officer

April 28, 2003
Calgary, Alberta
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 Alberta -~ '|'_ Saskatchewan

]

Central Alberta Gas =

'_Central
-1 Alperta Oil ~~

K

777" Southeast

! i a3 -
- Alberta Gas

A I

Established
Reserves
{mboe)
Southeast Saskatchewan
Central Alberta o1l

Southeast Alberta gas

Central Alberta gas

Total
As per Gilbert Laustsen Jung Associates Ltd. (GL]) report, at January 1, 2003




COUNTESS & LECKIE (SOUTHEAST ALBERTA GAS)
The Countess area, which is comprised of both the Countess
and Leckie properties, contributes production from a total of 375
natural gas wells. APF has an average working interest of 75.2%
in 24,960 acres of land at Countess. At Leckie, APF has a 100%
working interest in 22,880 acres of land and a 100% interest in
a compressor station. Dry natural gas is produced from the
shallow sands of the Belly River, Milk River and Medicine Hat
formations. The gas is gathered, dehydrated and compressed in
the field and sold under a long-term contract to TransCanada Gas
Services. In addition, APF receives custom compression revenue Bonnie Nicol,

from surplus capacity in two 720-horsepower compressors. Vice President, Operations

Future development of this shallow gas region consists of downspacing from the current 160 acres per
well to 8o acres. Wells in the area are drilled with coiled tubing to an average depth of 1,800 feet at a cost
of $130,000. Since acquiring the property in 1996, APF has drilled a total of 76 wells, with plans to drill
another 40 to 45 wells in 2003.

PEMBINA (CENTRAL ALBERTA OIL)

APF has interests in five Pembina Cardium Units located approximately 116 kilometres southwest of
Edmonton, including 100% working interest and operatorship of Champlin-Peruvian Cardium Unit
No. 1 and Pembina Cardium Unit No. 20. APF holds non-operated working interests of 7.35% in
Pemnbina Cardium Unit No. 12, 6.78% in Pembina Cardium Unit No. 9, and 1.26% in North Pembina
Cardium Unit No. 1.

Light crude oil is produced from a total 581 wells under waterflood programs in the Cardium formation.
Oil is treated at batteries associated with each unit and solution gas is gathered and processed through
APF’s share of the Pembalta gathering system.

Future development plans in these mature oil fields include further downspacing as well as the
realignment of water injector wells to improve sweep efficiency.

REDWATER (CENTRAL ALBERTA GAS)

The Redwater area is located northeast of Edmonton, Alberta. APF has an average 60% working interest
in 69 producing wells that cover approximately 184 sections of land. Dry natural gas is produced from the
Wabamun, Detrital, Basal Quartz, Glauconitic, Sparky, Colony and Second White Specks zones. The
production is sold under a combination of short and long-term gas contracts, as well as the spot market.

Future development of this area consists primarily of new drills and recompletions for bypassed pay in
the Cretaceous formations which are characterized by multi-zone potential. For 2003, APF intends to add
inlet compression to the facilities, and drill or recomplete 12 to 16 wells, relying on a combination of
geological and seismic data to improve drilling success.
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PADDLE RIVER (CENTRAL ALBERTA GAS)
APF has an average working interest of 39% in 34 wells producing primarily from the Pekisko and
Nordegg zones, with secondary production from the Viking and Basal Quartz. The area is easily accessible
and near major oil and gas infrastructure. Anselmo, Greencourt, Whitecourt, Corbett and Carson Creek
are all included in the Paddle River area. Most of APF’s gas in the area is processed through owned
capacity in the Paddle River gas plant.

With the application of APF's significant seismic database, the 2003 development plan consists of two new
drills as well as the installation of additional inlet compression.

SOUTHEAST SASKATCHEWAN

APF increased its holdings in its largest core area with the $59.5 million acquisition of Kinwest Resources
and its joint venture partner. Currently APF derives approximately 35% of its total production from
southeast Saskatchewan, operates 90% of this production and has ownership in the infrastructure in each
of the major areas. Most of APF’s oil pools receive pressure support from a regional acquifier. APF’s
development program since 2001 has primarily been through the drilling of horizontal wells.

APF will continue to optimize known Mississippian oil pools through horizontal drilling, leveraging off
its strong geological and geophysical expertise. In 2003, APF plans to drill another 13 to 18 horizontal
wells, as well as reactivate a waterflood program in one of its pools.

Tatagwa

APF has an average 70% working interest in 50 producing oil wells. Production comes from both the Marly
and Vuggy zones of the Midale formation. APF also holds an 80% working interest in the central oil battery
and water disposal facility and receives processing income from third parties using the facility.

Queensdale
APF holds an average working interest of 75% in 47 oil wells producing from the Frobisher-Alida zone.
The Trust also has ownership in three central batteries and water disposal facilities in the area.

Carlyle

APF holds an average working interest of 76% in nine wells producing from the Alida zone. The Trust
also holds a 90% working interest in a central battery and water disposal facility at the property.

Macoun

APF has an average working interest of 88% in 2.0 oil wells producing from the Vuggy zone.




DEVELOPMENT AND OPTIMIZATION

The second element of APF’s two-part business strategy

-managing effectively— has a number of components, but
none is more critical to the equation than the development and
optimization of the Trust’s asset base. Without an efficient
capital program, all of APF’s success would be pinned on the
execution of merger and acquisition opportunities. APF
believes its unitholders will take comfort in the fact that the
Trust is effectively managing and mitigating the natural
decline of its asset base through low-risk drilling and other
production enhancement techniques.

During 2002, APF spent $21.6 million on its capital
expenditure program, adding 3.4 mmboe of established
producing reserves and 3,221 boe per day of production. In
total, the Trust participated in drilling 109 wells (46.7 net) and
achieved a 100% success rate.

The bulk of the development effort was directed at two areas:
light oil in southeast Saskatchewan and shallow gas in
southeast Alberta.

In southeast Saskatchewan, $10.0 million was spent
principally on drilling APF’s operated properties at Carlyle,
Queensdale and Tatagwa. The development strategy continues
to be the exploitation of known oil pools through horizontal
drilling, targeting the Alida and Midale formations.

In Alberta, total capital expenditures amounted to $11.6 million.
Major projects included drilling wells on reduced spacing in the
Medicine Hat and Milk River formations at Countess and
Cardium oil wells in Pembina, and recompletion and drilling
activity within multi-zones at Redwater. |

John Ewing,
Vice President, GeoScience

PRODUCTION REPLACEMENT
HISTORY
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Percentage of production replaced
through low risk drilling and other
production enhancement techniques
only (excluding acquisitions).

For 2003, APF has approved a capital budget of approximately $20 million, before making any
adjustments for recently acquired assets that bring drilling opportunities. Factoring these low-risk

development projects into the budget may result in incremental expenditures of between

-$3 million and $7 million.

~ As in past years, APF’s goal will be to entirely replace 2003 production through the drill bit and other

production enhancement techniques.
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DRILLING HISTORY
The following table sets forth APF’s drilling activity for the periods indicated.

Years Ended December 31 2002 2001 2000 1999
Gross Net Gross Net Gross Net Gross  Net
0Oil wells 40 120 40 8.9 33 3.2 I7 1.0
Gas wells 62 330 33 31.3 65  14.8 6 6o
Other 7 Ly I oI 27 0.5 38 oy
Dry and abandoned - - 2 2.0 - - I4 oI
Total 109 467 76 42.2 125 18.5 75 7.8
Success Rate 100% 95% 100% 99%

| CATERPiLLAR
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Product: Sweet Natural Gas

Producing Zones: Mitk River and Medicine Hat
Year Acquired: 1996 - 97

Net Undeveloped Land: 245 acres

Avg. Working Interest: 87% (operated)

Avg. 2002 Production: 1,500 boe/d

@ 2002 APF-drilled gas well »V ' ~ APF iands

2002 Capital Expenditures: $5.7 million

Developed Hydrocarbons at:
$15,600 per flowing boe
$6.00 per boe of reserves
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A 2002 APF recompletion @ 2002 APF-drilled gas well ~ APF lands

REDWATER

Product: Sweet Natural Gas 2002 Capital Expenditures: $1.7 million

Producing Zones: Wabamun, Detrital, Basal Quartz, Developed Hydrocarbons at:
Glauconitic, Sparky, Colony and $3,900 per flowing boe
Second White Specks $3.50 per boe of reserves

Year Acquired: 2000

Net Undeveloped Land: 36,600 acres

Avg. Working Interest: 60% (operated, non operated)

Avg. 2002 Production: 815 boe/d
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@ 2002 APF-drilled gas well

PADDLE RIVER

Product: Gas and NGLs

Producing Zones: Pekisko, Nordegg, Viking and Basal Quartz
Year Acquired: 2002 (December)

Net Undeveloped Land: 21,900 acres

Avg. Working Interest: 39% (operated, non-operated)

Dec. 2002 Production: 470 boe/d

1SNHL ADYHIND ddV

APF lands

D Paddle River gas unit
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2 CARLYLE
Product: nghtOII
- Producing Zones: Mida
' Year‘Acﬁuirgd:lZOOl_ S
* Net Undeveloped Land: 5,100 acres
. Avg Workmg Interest: 76% (operated)
‘ (‘}-Avg 2002 Production: 340 boe/d

o '2002 Capltal Expenditures: $2 4 mllllon
. Added Hydrocarbons at: i
’ -$4,300 per flowing boe
$8.30 per boe of reserves
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O 2002 APF-drilled oil well @=—=horizontal well * APF lands

QUEENSDALE

Product: Light Qil 2002 Capital Expenditures: $2.7 million
Producing Zone: Alida Developed Hydrocarbons at:

Year Acquired: 2001 $3,900 per flowing boe

Net Undeveloped Land: 1,900 acres $6.45 per boe of reserves
Avg. Working Interest: 75% (operated)

Avg. 2002 Production: 1,020 boe/d
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JATAGWA
Product: Medium Oil

Producing Zones: Midale Marly and Vuggy
Year Acquired: 2001

Net Undeveloped Land: 2,100 acres

Avg. Working Interest: 70% (operated)
Avg. 2002 Production: 850 boe/d

C 2002 APF-drilled oil well @ horizontal well

2002 Capital Expenditures: $3.1 million

Developed Hydrocarbons at:
$6,100 per flowing boe
$8.90 per boe of reserves

APF lands
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CORPORATE DEVELOPMENT

as rationalized non-strategic components of APF’s asset base. In
total, APF executed $9o0.1 million worth of transactions
expanding on its existing core areas of operations. In southeast
Saskatchewan, APF added approximately 2,000 boe/d of
production, while APF’s central Alberta gas area saw a boost of
approximately 860 boe/d of production, the details of which are
summarized below.

ACQUISITION OF KINWEST RESOURCES INC.
On May 30, 2002 APF completed the acquisition of Kinwest

Resources Inc. and its joint venture partner for aggregate
R. Kenneth Pretty,

Vice President, Corporate
Development g Land

consideration of $59.5 million. The transaction added
approximately 2,000 boe/d of production, comprised of
1,800 bbl/d of light cil (90%), and 1,300 mcf/d of natural gas
(10%), predominantly in APF’s core area of southeast Saskatchewan.

The assets have an average 40% working interest and include oil interests in Alameda, Arcola, Buffalo
Head, Handsworth, Macoun, and Workman, and natural gas interests in Peco and Nipac. APF has
operatorship of approximately 85% of these assets.
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ACQUISITION OF PADDLE RIVER PROPERTY
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On December 12, 2002 APF completed the acquisition of assets at Paddle River in west central Alberta for
$22.7 million. The acquisition added approximately 860 boe/d of production, comprised of 4,200 mcf/d
of natural gas (8196) and 160 bbl/d of liquids (19%). Paddle River, proximal to APF’s Sakwatamau property,
is characterized by year-round access and low operating costs, and is located near major oil and gas
infrastructure. The assets have an average 30% working interest in 34 producing wells, including the
Anselmo, Greencourt, Whitecourt, Corbett and Carson Creek areas. The transaction also included
approximately 44,000 net acres of undeveloped land.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Acquisition of Hawk Oil Inc.

On February 5, 2003 APF completed the acquisition of Hawk Oil Inc., a Calgary-based gas-leveraged
company with 2,700 boe/d of production consisting of 9,300 mcf/d of natural gas (57%) and 1,150 of oil
(43%) for a total cost of $49.8 million. The acquisition further increases APF’s presence in central Alberta.
The assets have an average 98% working interest and include production at APF’s core area of Paddle
River and gas properties at Vermillion and Holmberg. The acquisition also brings with it heavy oil in the
Lloydminster and Epping areas of Saskatchewan. Virtually all the production is operated by APF, further
increasing the Trust’s operatorship to more than 9o%. The transaction also came with approximately
32,000 net acres of undeveloped land and an extensive proprietary seismic database.
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Hawk's oil and gas assets were evaluated by Gilbert Laustsen Jung Associates Ltd. in a report effective

October 1, 2002, a summary of which is set out below.

Natural Gas Oil + NGLs Total
Reserve Category {mmcf) {(mbbl]) (mboe)
Proved producing 7,867 1,612 2,923
Total proved 11,717 3,747 5,700
Proved + probable 16,920 5,608 8,428
Established 14,319 4,678 7,064

Note: Numbers may not add due to rounding




Acquisition of Nycan Energy Corp.

On April 23, 2003 APF completed the acquisition of Nycan Energy Corp., a Calgary-based gas-leveraged
producer with approximately 1,265 boe/d of production consisting of 5,700 mcf/d of gas (75%) and
315 bbl/d of oil and natural gas liquids (25%) for a total cost of $41.9 million. The acquisition complements
the Trust’s existing asset base in southeast Alberta and raises APF’s gas weighting to 45%. The major gas
assets include properties at Carmangay, Enchant, Little Bow, Long Coulee, Retlaw and Turin.
Approximately 65% of daily production is operated by APF. The acquisition also includes approximately
58,000 net undeveloped acres of land. Nycan's oil and gas assets were evaluated by Ashton Jenkins Mann
Petroleum Consultants in a report effective October 1, 2002, a summary of which is set out below.

Natural Gas Oil + NGLs Total
Reserve Category {mmcf) {(mbbl) {(mboe)
Proved producing 12,328 461 2,516
Total proved 21,813 722 4,358
Proved + probable 30,994 1,218 6,384
Established 26,404 970 5,371

Note: Numbers may not add due to rounding

Divestiture Activity

After a review of its asset base in the first part of the year, APF divested $9.0 million worth of low working
interest, non-operated assets during the third quarter of 2002. The properties had an aggregate year-to-
date production of approximately 318 boe/d.

The following table provides a summary of APF’s significant acquisitions and divestitures, and
demonstrates APF’s ability to sell non-strategic assets at top dollar.

Total Total Established
Value Production Reserves Metrics
Transaction Type Month {($o00) {boe/d) (mboe)  $/boe/d  $/boe
Acquisition
Kinwest Corp. May-02 59,500 2,000 7,950 29,750 7.48
Paddle River Asset Dec-02 22,700 8Go 2,594 26,395 875
Hawk Corp. Feb-03 49,800 2,700 7,064 18,444 .05
Nycan Corp. Apr-o3 41,900 1,265 5,371 33,123 7.80
Total 173,900 6,825 22,979 25,480 7.57
Divestiture Asset Sep-o2 9,000 318 839 28300  10.73
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MERGERS, ACQUISITIONS & DEVELOPMENT: HISTORICAL DEPLOYMENT OF CAPITAL
Since inception, APF has demonstrated the ability to acquire and develop reserves at very attractive rates.
The following table illustrates the efficiency of APF’s capital program, followed by a breakdown of the
capital expenditures for the years indicated.

Efficiency of the Capital Program

2002 2001 2000 1999 1998
Operating netback ($/boe) 17.83 20.42 21.28 10.11 7.31
EF&D costs ($/boe)® 7.74 10.73 4.16 7.81 4.30
Recycle ratio® 2.30 1.go 5.12 1.29 1;70
Cumulative F&D costs since inception
($/boe) 7.11 6.82 4.57 4.61 4.49

(1) Defined as total revenue less royalties and operating costs.

(2) Finding and development costs (FD) represent acquisition + drilling and development costs net of divestitures per
established reserve additions.

(3) The recycle ratio is a key measure of the efficiency in which new reserves are added. It is defined as the operating
netback divided by the F&D costs.

Capital Expenditures

The following table summarizes APF's capital expenditures for the years indicated.

Years Ended December 31 2002 2001 2000 1999 1998
{$oc0)

Property acquisition 90,101 105,717 13,249 3,895 27,900
Land acquisition 616 239 147 143 130
Seismic 497 208 15 99 62
Drilling and completions 15,890 12,490 3,912 2,232 585
Production facilities 3,684 3,340 1,619 950 500
Other 908 (52) - g (2806)
Subtotal 111,696 121,942 18,942 7.324 28,892
Dispositions (10,569) (6,903) (12,393) (2,326) (7.:334)
Net Capital Expenditures 101,127 115,039 6,549 4,998 21,558




OlL AND NATURAL GAS RESERVES

Gilbert Laustsen Jung Associates Ltd. (GL]), independent petroleum consultants, prepared a report on the
reserves attributable to APF’s properties and the present value of the estimated future net cash flow
associated with such reserves effective January 1, 2003.

Notes: Gas converted at 6 mcf = 1 boe. NGLs converted at 1 bbl = 1 boe. Established Reserves are 1009 of proved reserves
plus 50% of probable reserves. The net present value of future cash flow ("NPV") is after deduction of estimated future
capital expenditures, royalty burdens, operating expenses and abandonment costs, and before any provision for income
taxes, debt service charges and general and administrative expenses. It should not be assumed that the NPV is

representative of the fair market value of the assets. NPV is based on GLJ’s escalated price forecast as of January 1, 2003, >
which assumes a base 2003 oil price of US$25.50 per barrel and an AECO price of CDN$5.65 per mmbtu for gas. Reserves :12
are gross company interest reserves before deduction of royalties. Numbers may not add due to rounding. ITl
Reserve Volumes at January 1, 2003 z

Natural Gas oil NGLs Total g
Reserve Category (mmcf) (mbbl) {(mbbl) (mboe) 0
Proved producing 50,508 14,911 636 23,965 <
Total proved 59,438 16,684 768 27,359 ;
Proved + probable 77,141 22,836 927 36,620 -
Established 68,290 19,760 848 31,989 (_/1

Reserve Values at January 1, 2003

Net Present Value Discounted at: 8

Reserve Category ($000) 0% 10% 12% 15% o

Proved producing 334,587 207,960 195,258 179,552 M

Total proved 379,287 232,816 217,855 199,334 jz>

Proved + probable 514,736 286,076 264,793 239,011 z

Established 447,012 259,446 241,324 219,172 )E

-

GLJ Forecast at January 1, 2003 [:%

Edmonton T

Exchange WTI Oil Light Oil Alberta Gas 0

Year $US/$SCDN $US/bbl $CDN/bbl  $CDN/mmbtu E
2003 0.650 25.50 38.50 5.65
2004 0.660 22.00 32.50 5.00
2005 0.670 21.00 30.50 4.70
20006 0.670 21.00 30.50 4.85
;oo7 0.680 21.25 30.50 4.35
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Reconciliation of Reserves
The following table contains a reconciliation of APF's reserves for the most recently completed

calendar year.

Natural Gas Oil NGLs Total

(mmcf) (mbbl) (mbbl) {mboe)
Proved  Est.® Proved Est.® Proved Est.® Proved Est.®
Reserves at January 1, 2002 44,140 50,980 11,258 13,020 482 525 19,100 22,041
Drilling and development 6,940 7,670 1,043 1381 6 13 2200 2,672
Technical revisions 3,316 3,228 1,062 898 (44) {47) 1573 1,390
Acquisitions 15,050 16,650 5578 6,757 426 462 8,510 9,994
Divestitures (3.260) (3.490)  (320)  (359) (50) (53 (910) (994)
Production : (6:748) (6.748)  (1.937) (1.937) (52)  (52) (3.114) (3.114)

Reserves at January 1, 2003 59,438 68,290 16,684 19,760 768 848 27359 31,989

Numbers may not add due to rounding

(1) Established

LAND HOLDINGS

In addition to the reserves, GLJ also evaluated APF’s 184,715 net acres of undeveloped land at $7.9 million.
The value was derived by reference to land sales proximate to APF’'s undeveloped acreage, APF’s
applicable working interest, and expiry profile.

Developed Undeveloped
Province Gross Acres Net Acres Gross Acres Net Acres
Alberta 236,688 133,648 145,585 98,996
Saskatchewan 72,388 34,819 164,657 84,079
Manitoba 640 507 1,893 1,298
British Columbia 1,202 288 1,303 343
Total 311,009 169,203 313,439 184,715

Numbers may not add due to rounding
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BUSINESS OBJECTIVES

The goal of APF Energy Trust is to provide unitholders with high and stable cash distributions. To
achieve this, the Trust must continually replace and add reserves through acquisitions, drilling and
optimization initiatives.

In order to replace reserves and achieve growth, the Trust must be able to identify, evaluate and
acquire oil and gas properties. To date, the Trust has demonstrated an ability to complete
acquisitions on favorable terms, which have resulted in high and stable distributions for
unitholders since inception. On a go-forward basis, APF will continue to use its internal expertise

to identify potential acquisitions.

EQUITY ISSUES
On December 17th, 1996, the Trust completed its initial public offering (IPO) of 3.5 million trust units
at $10 per trust unit. Since then, the Trust has issued equity several times. A summary of all financings
is set out below.

Units ~ Gross Proceeds

Type Date Price ($) (000) {$000)
IPO Dec-96 10.00 3,500 35,000
New issue Dec-98 8.00 2,260 18,080
New issue Mar-oc 7.30 1,223 8,928
New issue Mar-o1 10.00 3,301 33,010
Acquisition Apr-or 10.05 9o2 9,065
New issue Jun-orx 11.50 3,050 35,075
Private placement Oct-o1 9.55 1,080 10,314
New issue Feb-o2 9.75 3,250 31,688
Acquisition May-02 I0.I5 3,385 34,358
Acquisition Feb-03 9.45 3,990 37,708
New issue Apr-o3 10.40 5,300 55,120
Total 31,240 308,331

DISTRIBUTIONS

Unitholders of record on the record date are entitled to receive monthly distributions. Currently, the record
date is the last day of the month. In order to be a unitholder on the record date, units must have been
purchased prior to the ex-distribution date, which is two trading days earlier (note that the presence of
holidays and weekends may result in the ex-distribution date being more than two calendar days prior to
the record date). Units acquired on/or after the ex-distribution date will not qualify for that month’s record
date, but will qualify for the next record date. Payment to unitholders is made on the 15th day of the
following month (note that if the 15th of the month falls on a holiday and/or weekend, the distribution is
paid the next business day). As the Trust has an obligation to announce its distribution seven trading days
prior to the record date, a news release is generally disseminated between the 18th and 22nd of the month.




Listed below are APF’s 2003 key distribution dates followed by a table of historical distributions.

Ex-Distribution Date

Record Date

Payment Date

December 27 December 31 January 15
January 29 January 31 February 17
February 26 February 28 March 17
March 27 March 31 April 15 i
April 28 April 30 May 15 %
May 28 May 31 June 16 0
June 26 June 30 July 15 m
July 29 July 31 August 15 nZ'l
August 27 August 31 September 15 T
September 26 September 30 October 15 0
October 29 October 31 November 17 <
November 26 November 30 December 15 Z_Dl
C
Distribution Date ($) 2003 2002 2001 2000 1999 1098 1997 2
January 15th 0.160 0.150 0.220 0.125 0.120 0.475 0.210
February 15th 0.160 0.150 0.250 0.125 0.160 - -
March 15th 0.165 0.150 0.250 ©.125 0.120 0.120 - g
April 15th 0.185 0.150 0.225 0.125 0.120 0.120 0.455 O
May 15th 0.150 0.300 0.125 0.160 0.I75 - ®
June 15th 0.150 0.300 0.135 0.120 0.120 - )Z>
July 15th 0.150 0.300 0.135 0.120 0.120 0.420 z
August 15th 0.150 0.300 0.135 0.135 0.175 - JC>
September 15th 0.150 0.250 0.140 0.125 0.120 - r
October 15th 0.150 0.250 0.210 0.125 0.120 0.425 py
November 15th 0.150 0.200 0.210 0.125 0.175 - g
December 15th 0.150 0.200 0.310 0.125  0.I20 - 0
Total 0.670 1.800 3.045 1.9goo 1555 1.840 1510 3
Cumulative 12.320 11.650 9.850 6.805 4-905 3.350 1.510

27



TAXATION

Each distribution has a component which is a return of capital and a component which is taxable as
income. The portion which is a return of capital reduces a unitholder’s adjusted cost base. Each year, in
the second half of February, the Trust announces its tax treatment of distributions for the previous year.
T-3 tax slips showing the taxable portion of the distributions are then provided to registered unitholders,
who in turn generate their own T-3 tax slips for dissemination to beneficial unitholders. The following
table provides the Trust's tax breakdown of distributions since inception.

Total
Distributions Income Return of Capital
Year $ $ % $ %
2002 1.80 LI4 63.52 0.66 36.48
2001 3.05 1.74 57.18 1.30 42.83
2000 1.90 1.18 62.14 0.72 37.86
1999 156 0.53 33.83 .03 66.17
1998 1.84 0.45 24.63 139 75.38
1997 1.51 0.60 30.54 0.91 60.46

2002 ANNUAL REPORT"
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TRADING HISTORY

Trust units of APF are traded on the Toronto Stock Exchange under the symbol AY.UN. At year-end 2002
there were 22,942,417 units outstanding (December 31, 2001 ~ 15,583,880). The weighted average units
outstanding throughout the year were 20,470,210 {December 31, 2001 — 12,578,032). In February 2003,
through the acquisition of Hawk Oil Inc., the Trust issued 3,990,474 units. In April 2003 the Trust issued
5,300,000 units through a public offering bringing the number of units outstanding to 32,232,891. The
following table sets forth the high, low and closing prices as well as the average daily volume traded for
the periods indicated:

Period High Low Close Avg. Vol/d
1997 $ ro.70 $ 875 $ 910 9,600
1998 $ 975 $ .65 $ 8.0 4,900
1999 $ 970 $ .25 $ 810 9,500
2000 $ 1040 $ 7.00 $ 975 10,000
2001 $ 13.40 $ 85 $ 985 46,500
2002 A
First quarter $ 10.99 $ 935 $ 1085 64,900
Second quarter $ 119 $ 10.08 $ 1058 68,200
Third quarter $ 10.89 $ 1011 $ 10.65 57,400
Fourth quarter $ 1071 $ 9.00 $ 979 84,300
2003
First quarter $ 10.95 $ 9.66 $ 1030 104,800

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

APF Energy Trust is committed to ensuring its governance structure provides unitholders with the
highest degree of confidence that its business and operations are being undertaken with the unitholders’
interests in mind.

The proof of this dedication is reflected in APF’s performance year after year, and is the result of very strong
stewardship from APF’s Board of Directors, the majority of whom are not related to management.

With the recently completed internalization of management, all directors, including those who are related
to management, will be elected by the unitholders. In prior years, unitholders had the right to elect a
majority of the Board of Directors, while the manager could elect the minority. The current APF Board, set
at five members, will be expanded to six, all of whom will be elected at this year’s unitholders’ meeting.
Expansion of the Board will further enhance the efficacy of the Trust’s corporate governance structure as
APF continues to grow.

Although the APF Board will grow in size, it is committed to ensuring that it does not lose any of its
nimbleness, a distinguishing trait since inception. With the execution of merger and acquisition
opportunities as one of APF’s focal points, it is critical that the Board has the expertise and ability to quickly
assess a possible acquisition.
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APF’s Board meets regularly to discuss the Trust’s operations and business. Where circumstances
warrant, additional meetings are scheduled to deal with time-sensitive or special business. Excluding
monthly meetings to set the cash distribution, APF’s Board of Directors will meet eight to 1o times per
year. This would include quarterly meetings during which senior management makes a detailed
presentation outlining all major operational and financial aspects of the business, for both the recently-
completed period and the forward-looking time frame. In addition, the unrelated directors meet to discuss
issues outside the presence of the Trust’s two senior officers, who also sit on the Board.

Complementing the Board as a whole are its various committees, each of which is comprised either-
exclusively or largely of unrelated directors. Currently, there are three committees: Audit, Reserves and
Compensation. As we believe corporate governance is an area which should be monitored by the Board as
a whole, there is no separate corporate governance committee.

HEDGING

As a royalty trust, a critical component to APF’s cash management lies in mitigating the risk inherent in
a commodity-based business. Given that cash flow is distributed to unitholders on a monthly basis, APF’s
long-term success is contingent on providing a stable stream of distributions and, when circumstances
warrant, increasing those distributions.

Although many investors hold units of APF because they want to participate directly in commodity prices,
a significant number of them want to mitigate the volatility associated with the energy sector. To date, APF
has demonstrated its ability to effectively manage that risk through commodity hedging, principally
through forward sales.

Given APF's continued growth, the Board of Directors has determined that guidelines regarding hedging
should now be promulgated, so that unitholders of APF and other interested parties can more clearly
understand how APF manages commodity risk.

One of the key assumptions in the preparation of APF’s annual budget and forecast of annual distributions
is commodity price. APF in the past has adopted GL] price forecast. APF’s goal is to ensure that a portion
of the year’s distributions, based on certain commodity price assumptions, are protected. In other words,
if the January 1 GLJ price forecast estimates the current year’s crude oil price to average US$25.50 per
barrel, APF would look for an opportunity to sell forward a portion of its production at that level or better.

While this guideline necessarily implies that commodity prices may rise, it must be acknowledged that
commodity prices may fall. In that regard, in situations where prices are below those forecasted by GLJ,
management’s expertise is relied on to ensure that potential opportunities to mitigate that difference are

taken advantage of.

As GLJ updates its forecast throughout the year, a new benchmark is established, which in turn will
provide price guidance for hedging during the next period.

APF believes that in the ordinary course of business, not more than 40% of production volumes should
be hedged. At that level, there is both downside protection, as well as the ability to participate in the upside.
The appropriate measurement should be the average production during the quarter, rather than daily,
weekly or monthly. As a result of price variations in the futures markets from month-to-month, it may be




appropriate to hedge more than 40% of a certain month’s production volumes, while hedging fewer
volumes in the other two months.

There may be other circumstances where tactical considerations may require APF to hedge more than 40%
of production volumes. For example, in order to take advantage of an acquisition opportunity, it might be
necessary to lock in prices on certain volumes greater than 40%. In those circumstances, however, it is
expected that exceeding the maximum guideline would only be for a limited period, generally not exceeding
six to 12 months. Accordingly, approval would be sought from both the Board and our lenders.

As for the time horizon, it is expected that most forward contracts would not be entered into for periods
beyond 12 months.

In order to mitigate the potential credit risk of any counter-parties, all transactions are completed with
either a Schedule 1 or Schedule 2 chartered bank, with preference given to those institutions with whom
APF may already have a credit or investment banking relationship.

The only representatives authorized to transact hedging business for APF are the Chief Executive
Officer, the President, or the Vice President, Finance. All contracts must be signed by any two of the
aforementioned individuals.
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CORPORATE SAFETY, HEALTH, ENVIRONMENT AND RISK POLICY
APF’s Safety, Health, Environmental and Risk Policy outlines our dedication to achieving the highest

standard of performance. It represents a commitment to foster a corporate culture that proactively

anticipates and avoids accidents and environmental incidents.

Acknowledging that this area is an integral part of all business activities, APF has a full-time staff member

dedicated to ensuring all our objectives are met. The Safety and Environmental Coordinator reports
directly to the Vice President, Operations. Together with the President, these three individuals form the
Health, Safety and Environmental Committee, which provides quarterly updates to the Board of Directors
of APF in which all issues are discussed.

The following principles guide APF’s conduct in achieving its safety, health, environmental and risk
management objectives:

APF will comply with, or exceed where appropriate, all the requirements of applicable laws and
regulations with respect to the environment.

APF will ensure the employees and contract personnel, and others who provide services to APF, are
aware of this Policy and implement it.

APF will assess the potential impact of new projects on our employees and contract personnel, those
who provide services to APF, affected persons and the environment, so that effective control measures,
including appropriate construction, operating and maintenance procedures are developed and
implemented.

APF will periodically assess all our operations to identify and evaluate safety, health and environmental
risks. The results will be acted upon and communicated to our senior management and Board of
Directors.

APF will identify and monitor all sources of emissions, discharges, and waste generation in our
operations to ensure the use of sound operating practices to facilitate business planning, and to support
pollution prevention.

APF will promptly report all accidents and potential accidents, to ensure the use of safe operating
practices in all our operations.




MANAGEMENT’'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The following discussion should be read in conjunction with the audited
consolidated financial statements included in this annual report.

PRODUCTION

Production volumes were 46% higher in 2002, primarily as a
result of the acquisition of Kinwest Resources Inc. ("Kinwest") and
its joint venture partner in May 2002, and the full impact of
acquisitions in 2001. The Kinwest acquisition added production in
APF’s core area of southeast Saskatchewan. Natural production
declines were offset by production increases from successful
developmént drilling programs primarily at Queensdale, Carlyle
and Tatagwa in southeast Saskatchewan and at Countess in  Alan MacDonald,

southeast Alberta. The acquisition of production in the Paddle Vice President, Finance

River area closed on December 12, 2002 and the effect of the increased production will be fully recognized
in 2003. Production in 2003 will also increase with the 2003 acquisitions of Hawk Oil Inc. in February
and the expected closing of Nycan Energy Corp. in April.

Daily Production Volumes 2002 2001 % Change
Crude oil (bbl/d) 5,307 3,167 68
Natural gas (mcf/d) 18,488 15,391 20
NGLs (bbl/d) 144 100 44
Total (boe/d) 8,532 5,832 46
MARKETING

In 2002, APF’s production mix was 64% crude oil and NGLs, and 36% natural gas. Crude oil was sold
under 3o-day evergreen contracts while approximately 53% of natural gas production was sold to
aggregators pursuant to long-term contracts, with the remaining 47% sold on the spot market.

PRICES

The benchmark West Texas Intermediate (“WTI") oil price averaged US$26.09 per bblin 2002, 19 higher
than the 2001 average of US$25.94. Crude oil prices in Canada are based on the WTI reference price,
adjusted for transportation, differentials and foreign exchange. The price received by APF is based upon
the refiners’ posted price, less transportation and adjustments for APF’s product quality relative to the
posted price and adjusted for hedging. APF’s oil price averaged $33.66 per bbl in 2002, compared to
$33.64 per bbl in 2001.

Crude oil prices averaged US$33.80 per bbl through the first quarter of 2003, due primarily to supply
concerns emanating from world events. The uncertainty over crude oil supplies has recently diminished
and we have seen a reduction in prices to approximately US$28.c0 per bbl. APF expects crude oil prices
will continue to be volatile during 2003, but will still exceed the average for 2002.

APF's realized natural gas price for 2002 averaged $3.83 per mcf, 22% lower than the average realized price
of $4.94 per mcfin 2001. The benchmark AECO price in Alberta fell by an average of 35 per cent from 2001
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levels. However, during the 2002/03 winter season, storage volumes have been drawn down to very low

levels as a result of cold temperatures in much of North America, resulting in gas prices being driven up to

unusually high levels. APF expects higher gas prices during 2003 as supply concerns dominate the market.

Prices — After Hedging 2002 2001 % Change
Crude oil (Cdn$/bbl) 33.66 33.64 o
Natural gas (Cdn$/mcf) 3.83 4.94 (22)
NGLS (Cdn$/bbl) 25.15 30.97 (x9)
Total (Cdn$/boe) 29.65 31.04 (7)
HEDGING

Commodity prices continued to be volatile during 2002. APF actively manages commodity price risk by
entering into hedging contracts to protect revenues from fluctuations in commodity prices. Hedging is
intended to provide stability to cash distribution levels by fixing the price on a portion of the production
portfolio. Hedging activities- reduced revenues by $3.9 million, reducing the realized oil price by
$2.16 per bbl and increasing the natural gas price by $0.04 per mcf. Going forward, APF has the following

hedges in place:

' Type of Average Average
Period Commodity  Contract  Daily Quantity Hedged Price
January to March 2003 Crude oil Swap 1,367 bbls US$29.83/bbl
January to March 2003 Crude oil Collar ryoo bbls  US$24.82/bbl to US$27.85/bbl
January to March 2003 Natural gas Collar 2,000 GJ C$4.00/G]J to C$7.80/G]J
January to December 2003 Natural gas Swap 1,000 G]J C$5.80/G]J
April to June 2003 Crude oil Swap 2,833 bbls US$28.40/bbl
April to October 2003 Natural gas Swap 1,000 mmbtu US$5.06/mmbtu
April to December 2003 Natural gas Swap 5,000 GJ C$6.72/GJ
July to September 2003 Crude oil Swap 2,667 bbls US$27.79/bbl
October to December 2003 Crude oil Swap 1,167 bbls US$27.54/bbl

REVENUE

Revenue, net of hedging transactions, increased 34% to $94.0 million in 2002 compared to $69.9 million
in 2001, due to a combination of higher production volumes partially offset by lower natural gas prices.

(000 except per boe amounts) 2002 % 2001 %
Crude oil sales $69,390 74 $37,256 53
Natural gas sales 25,534 27 29,485 42
NGLs sales 1,320 I 1136
Hedging (3.899) 4) 161
Other ' 1,676 2 1,886
Total Revenue 04,021 100 69,924 100
Per boe $ 30.19 $ 32.85




ROYALTIES
Royalties per barrel of oil equivalent produced were lower in 2002 due primarily to lower natural gas
prices resulting in a lower crown royalty rate under the price-sensitive Alberta Crown royalty program.

(000 except per boe amounts) 2002 2001 % Change
Crown royalties $ 10,905 $ 7,236 51
Freehold royalties 6,323 4,602 37
Overriding royalties 1,479 1,526 (3)
Total Royalties 18,707 13,304 40
% of revenue after hedging 19.9% 19.1% 4
Per boe $ G.or $ 6.28 {(4)

OPERATING COSTS

Operating costs increased 3% in 2002 to $6.35 per boe, due primarily to initial field optimization costs on
newly acquired properties and higher energy costs. Continued high energy costs and general higher field
costs associated with APF’s current property portfolio are expected to negate any operating efficiencies
initiated to reduce operating costs in 2003.

{000 except per boe amounts) 2002 2001 % Chahge
Operating costs $19,748 $13,086 51
Per boe $ 633 $ 6.5 3
NETBACKS

The operating netback for 2002 was $17.83 per boe, 13% lower than the $20.42 per boe experienced in
2001 and reflects the 22% decline in natural gas prices during the year.

{$/boe) 2002 2001 % Change
Net revenue (after hedging) 30.19 32.85 (8)
Royalties 6.01 6.28 (4)
Operating costs 6.35 6.15 3
Netback 17.83 20.42 (13)

GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE
General and administrative costs increased 38% in absolute terms over 2cor due to the significant
increase in the asset base during 2002, but decreased 6% per barrel of oil equivalent produced.

{000 except per boe amounts) 2002 2001 % Change
General and administrative $ 4,635 $ 3,360 38
Per boe $ 149 $ 158 (6)
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MANAGEMENT FEE

The Manager received a management fee equal to 3.5% of net production revenue. Management fees
increased 31% in 2002 due to the 46% increase in production volumes and the resulting impact on
production revenues. Management fees were eliminated with the internalization of the management
contract at the end of 2002. In 2003 and future years, no management fees will be charged.

(coo except per boe amounts) 2002 2001 % Change
Management fee $ 1976 $ 1503 31
Per boe $ 063 $§ o7 (10}
INTEREST

Interest expense decreased 7% during 2002 due to lower interest rates and lower average debt levels. At
December 31, 2002, APF had fixed the interest rate on $30 million of debt at an average rate of 3.76% plus
applicable stamping fee, with $10 million maturing May 2003 and $20 million maturing November 2003.

(000 except per boe amounts) 2002 2001 % Change
Interest $ 2,834 $ 3,048 7)
Per boe $ o901 $ 143 (36)

DEPLETION AND AMORTIZATION

Depletion and amortization increased 4% to $9.70 per boe in 2002, reflecting the current cost of
acquisitions being higher than the historical average cost.

(000 except per boe amounts) 2002 2001 % Change
Depletion and amortization $30,200 $19,779 53
Per boe $ 970 $ 9.29 4

SITE RESTORATION

Site restoration increased 10% to $0.67 per boe in 2002, reflecting the increase in future estimated costs
for site restoration liabilities from 2002 acquisitions.

{000 except per boe amounts) 2002 2001 % Change
Site restoration $ 2,087 $ 1293 61
Per boe $ 0.67 $ 0.61 10
TAXES

Saskatchewan capital tax and federal large corporations tax increased 62% in 2002 and reflected the
higher proportion of business in the province of Saskatchewan and higher paid up capital.

Future income taxes are recorded on corporate acquisitions to the extent the book value of assets acquired
exceeds the tax basis. This future income tax liability increases the book cost of the assets acquired. This
future income tax liability will not be paid by APF Energy, but will instead be passed on to unitholders
along with the income. Accordingly, this income tax liability will reduce each year and will be recognized
as an income tax recovery at that time. In 2002, APF recorded a recovery of income taxes of $7.13 million




compared to $5.17 million in 2001, leaving a balance of $39.6 million in future income taxes payable at
December 31, 2002.

{000 except per boe amounts) 2002 2001 % Change
Capital and other taxes $ 1901 $ 1172 62
Per boe $ 0061 $ o355 154
Recovery of future income taxes $ (7.133) $ (5,174 38

INTERNALIZATION OF MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

On December 18, 2002, the unitholders approved the internalization of management and eflective
December 31, 2002, the Trust acquired all of the shares of APF Energy Management Inc. The acquisition
resulted in the elimination of all management fees including the 3.5% fee on net operating income, a
structuring fee of 1.5% on acquisitions and dispositions, and the 1% residual royalty.

The total purchase price of the shares, including transaction costs, was $10.9 million, of which
$4.6 million was paid in cash and $6.3 million was paid with Trust units, a portion of which are subject
to certain escrow provisions. Of the total, $7.3 million was recorded as an expense at December 31, 2002.

{000 except per boe amounts) 2002 2001
Internalization of management contract $ 7,297 $ -
Per boe $ 231 $ -

NET EARNINGS _

Earnings were down 37% to $11.4 million or $o.55 per Trust unit ($0.55 diluted) in 2002 compared to
$18.1 million or $1.44 per Trust unit ($1.44 diluted) in 2001. Lower natural gas prices and the cost associated
with the internalization of the management contract more than offset higher production volumes.

CASH DISTRIBUTIONS

Cash distributions for 2002 were $37.8 million, or $1.81 per Trust unit, compared to $37.3 million or $2.98
per Trust unit in 2001. The discrepancy between amounts earned and distributions paid to unitholders
relates to the timing of the recognition of revenue for accounting purposes. During 2002, APF funded
$5.1 million of capital expenditures from cash flow, resulting in a payout ratio of 88%. For 2003, APF
intends to maintain its historical policy of retaining a portion of available cash flow to fund capital
expenditures and development initiatives, with a target payout ratio of 80%.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

At December 31, 2002, APF had a revolving demand credit facility in the amount of $100 million, with a
b.orrowing base of $100 million, of which $88 million was drawn. On February 5, 2003, the credit facility
was amended to a revolving committed line of credit with a committed amount of $130 million and a
borrowing base of $130 million. The ratio of net debt to total capitalization at the end of 2002 was 28%
(28% in 2001).
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December 31 2002 2001

Long-term debt ($0c0) 88,000 59,250
Working capital/(deficiency) ($000) 409 949
Net debt ($o000) 87,591 58,301
Units outstanding (000) 22,942 15,584
Market price ($) 9.79 9.85
Market capitalization ($000) 224,602 153,502
Enterprise value {$000) 312,193 211,803
Net Debt to Total Capitalization (%) 28 28

UNITHOLDERS’ EQUITY
At December 31, 2002, APF had 22.94 million Trust units outstanding and a market capitalization of
approximately $224.6 million.

In February 2002, APF issued 3.25 million Trust units at $9.75 per Trust unit for gross proceeds of
$31.7 million. These funds were initially used to reduce bank debt and ultimately to partially finance the
Kinwest acquisition. APF also issued 3.39 million Trust units as part of the Kinwest acquisition and
accournted for these at a price of $10.65 per Trust unit.

During 2002, 61,177 Trust units (112,424 in 2001) were issued pursuant to the Trust unit incentive plan
for total proceeds of $0.5 million ($1.0 million in 2001).

Effective December 31, 2002, APF acquired all of the outstanding shares of APF Energy Management Inc.,
the Manager of APF. As part of the consideration, 661,850 Trust units were issued of which 293,930 are
held in escrow, 150,520 are releasable over a three-year period and 143,404 are releasable over a four-year
period. The Trust units held in escrow are eligible for distributions.

On April 2, 2003, APF closed the issue of 5.30 million Trust units at a price of $10.40 each for gross
proceeds of $55.1 million. ‘

BUSINESS RISKS

APF is faced with a number of business risks that are inherent in the oil and gas industry and which can
have an impact on distributions to unitholders. To mitigate these risks, APF follows appropriate policies
and procedures in its ongoing operations and long-term strategic planning.

Financial and market risks associated with commodity prices and foreign currency exchange rates are
mitigated through APF actively managing the sale of its own production to maximize price and through
the use of a hedging program to hedge commodity prices and foreign currency rates with credit-worthy
counterparties. Hedging is employed as a risk management tool and not for speculation. Interest rates can
be fixed through interest rate swaps.

There are inherent operational risks associated with oil and natural gas production, relating to the ability
to produce, process and transport oil and natural gas; the ability to replace production and maintain
reserves and environmental and safety risks associated with well and production facilities. To mitigate
these risks, APF employs a strategy of operating a significant portion of its production, thereby providing




greater control over operations; APF employees and contractors adhere to APF’s safety program and stay
current on changes to operating practices, and APF maintains insurance coverage to minimize the impact
of operational losses.

APF’s ability to grow is dependent upon its ability to raise debt and equity capital in the Canadian capital
markets. APF has lines of credit with three Canadian financial institutions that provide debt financing for
acquisitions. The issue of new equity allows APF to pay down debt while continuing to make acquisitions.
If Canadian debt or equity markets were to become inaccessible to APF, it may affect the ability of APF to
continue to replace production and maintain distributions.

Changing government royalty regulations, income tax laws, incentive programs relating to the oil and
gas industry and changes in securities legislation are all examples of regulatory changes that can affect
APF’s activities. ‘

Sensitivities to 2003 cash distributions are as follows:

Per

_($000}  Trust Unit

Crude oil price — US$1/bbl 3,022 $ o010
Natural gas price - CDN$o.10/mcf 981 $o.03
US/CDN exchange rate — $0.01 1,992 $o0.07
Interest rate — 1.0% 979 $0.03
Crude oil production - 100 bbl/d 676 $0.02
Natural gas production — 1 mmcf/d 1,130 $0.04

These sensitivities include the issue of 5.30 million new Trust units in April 2003 and assumes the
acquisition of Nycan closes at the end of April 2003.

OUTLOOK :
The acquisitions of Kinwest, Hawk Oil and the soon to close Nycan Energy, have enhanced the property
portfolio of APF. With a market capitalization of more than $300 million, production in excess of 13,000

boe/d and established reserves of 44 mmboe following the acquisition of Nycan, APF is well positioned
to build for the future.

APF’s growth will continue from its strategy of buying well and exploiting its land base through low-risk
development drilling, recompletions and field optimizations. APF expects to spend $20 million on these
initiatives in 2003.

APF is committed to pursuing acquisitions that will be accretive on a per unit basis to cash flow,
production, reserves and net asset value. Despite the current volatility in the commodity markets due to
world events, APF is committed to maintaining stable cash distributions over the long-term and believes
that the outlook for both crude oil and natural gas pricing remains strong.
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Cash payments

“Interest .

) Dlstnbunons to mlnonty 1nterests

.. - Distributioris to Unltholders o
', Cap1ta1 taxes :

2842585 3,265,931
e 78
30,539,143 36 543,928

e 164 850, - 576, 829

Dunng the year 3, 38 5 510 Trust Unlts were 1ssued as pamal con51deratlon for vthe meest Acqulsmon (2001
"-' = 901,599 for the acqulsmon of Alhance) " = ‘

- NOTE 16| CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

et .:a)v :TAPF has lease commltments relatlng to office bulldmgs The esttmated annual operanng lease rental

= -payrnents for the- bu1ld1ngs will’ be $05 million ‘in 2003. through 2005 $o 6 mllhon in 2006 and'-' '

o -'$0.9 million in 2007 and 2008, the remaining term-of the leases. " - e SRR

b} "APF is involved in-certain legal actions that occurred'in-the. ordmary course of ness. Management ST
" is of the opinion that losses, if- -any, ansmg from such legal actlons would not have a matenal effect on’

: 'these ﬁnanc1a1 statements. T : L S

o NOTE 17 SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

LsNdl A9Yd3aINI IdV

. Acqulsmon of Hawk Oil Inc.

. ‘Effective February 5,2003, APF acqulred all of the issuédand outstandlng shares‘of Hawk Oil Inc{"H S

"The purchase price of apprommately $48. ) million ‘was satisfied by a cash payment of $2.8 mllhon the’-‘“‘ T
i issuance of 3.9 million Trust Units and the assumptlon of Hawk’s bank debt of $9 o million.

: Offer to’ Purchase Nycan Energy Corp R : ‘ . i ,
© On ‘March ‘1o, 2003, APF entered into an- agreement to. make an offer to purchase all ‘of the 1ssued and» S
A "outstandmg shares of Nycan Energy Corp. ("Nycan") for $2.075 pet share'in cash. If accepted by-holdeérs of - '
* - -all of the Nycan ‘shares, the offer will result in .payment of apprommately $36 86 mllhon in cash and the
N assumptlon of Nycan s bank debt of apprommately $7.9 million. : g

; '.Agency Agreement and Prospectus Flhng ; RN ks o
" APF.and the Agents eritered into’ an Agency Agreement’ ursuant to whlch the Agents agreed tor offer and o
wthe Trust agreed to issue and sell up t0' 5,300,000 Trust Units-ata price of. $Io 40 pér, Trust Unit, Closmg of :” .

- the offering and the issue of 5,300,000" Trust Units took place on April 2, 2003 The éstimated net proceeds - " -
from the offering, after deductmg expenses‘of the issue and after. Agents’ commissions Il be.in the amount ERIA

' '.'0f$52 114 cop and wﬂl be used to fund the acq ‘ : L -
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THE APF TEAM

Beaudzry, Jesse
Bilben, Julie-Anne

‘MacMahon, Gordon®
Mah, Mary Jane

‘ABBREVIATIONS

Boston, Angela Morris, Pat ARTC Alberta Royalty Tax Credit
Boyle, Sheila Newman, Kevan bbl barrel
Brown,. Sandra Nicol, 'Bonn.ie “bbls barrels
Cartwright, Ryan Palacz, Chris o
Cherniwchan, Barry Palma, Elizabeth : bbl/d barrels per day ,
Clark;, Melissa Piekarska, Violetta - boe barrels of oil equivalent (6 mef =1 bbi) N
- Cloutier, Steve P Qlay, Karen' S - boejd barrels of oil equivalent per day T
~ Cu, Freddie . ‘Ponto, Mike - - - S : T
- 'Davies, Mike - Pretty, Ken - - £ Estabhshed L . L m
- L ]johe rty Eugene o " Radulescy Simo'ﬁ . o Reserves - proved reserves plus one-half probable reserves - Z
anaié, Gwen Rampersaud, Heather ."?v’,:;“:,jv,'mbbl  thousand barrels o F]?
.. Etcheverry, Bob Rice, Paula - . ‘ - ‘mboe thousand barrels of oil equivalent 0]
: Ewing, | O-hnf - Ryap, Mu;’ra}{" et omef ‘thousand cubic feet - <
- ‘Faryna, Kevin Schindel, Butch. - . . .00 , o _ : 4
- - Gardrier, Naomj - _ SChliC,henma)’i?'rf Pat " - S _»mcf/d_ ..thousands of cubic feet per day . 3
' Gilchrist, Margaret ‘Skjonsby, Briari | O mmef -million cubic feet C%
- Green, Naomi Sk]onsby,.M’gerl_lrp-. " mmicf/d" - millions of cubic feet per day -
~Guse, Jane’ Snyder,-Dave = * . o Sl N I :
g Guterson, Christina - Stephens, John - - . . mmbtu  million British thermal units (r mmbtu = 1 mcf)
- Heatlier, Murray Sy_lv‘estre; Reg ’: L UNGL natural gas liquids
. Himmelspach, Darcy Tan, Selina . NPV~ net present value

Hislop, Martin -

-+ -Hudson, Leora. -
© Ilett, Kim

Thompson,’ Ia’éiojn

Vrooman—Robertsdﬁ;;M‘aﬁlyn

_ Ward, Don .~
-James, Rick - Wilshusen, Bob
Kolakovic, Almira Wu, Dilia * :

MacDonald, Alan Young, Lisa -

DISCLAIMER S
Certain statements in this material are "forward-looking statements” including outlook on oil and gas prices, royalty rates,
operating expenses, estimates of future production, estimated completion dates of construction and development projects,
business plans for drilling and exploration, estimated amounts and timing of capital expenditures and anticipated future debt
levels. Information concerning reserves-contained in this material may also be deemed to be forward-looking statements as such
estimates involving the implied assessment that the resources described can be profitably produced in the future. These
statements are based on current expectations, estimates and projections that involve a number of risks and uncertainties which
could cause actual. results to differ from those anticipated by APF Energy Trust and APF E nergy Inc. These risks include, but
are not limited to: the risks of the oil and gas industry (e.g., operational.risks in exploration Jfor; development and production
of crude oil and natural gas; risks and uncertainties involving geology of oil and gas deposits; the uncertainty of reserve
estimates; the uncertainty of estimates and projections relating to production, costs and expenses; potential delays or changes
in plans with respect to exploration or development projects or capital expenditures; and health, safety and environmental
risks); risks in conducting foreign operations (e.g., political and fiscal instability in nations where APF Energy does business);
the possibility that government policies may change or governmental approvals. may be delayed or withheld; and price and
exchange rate fluctuations. These and other risks are described in APF Eneérgy’s reports that are on file with Canadian securities
regulatory authorities. Any offering of Trust units may only be made under a prospectus. Any Trust units offered will not be
and have not been registered under the United States Securities Act of 1933 and may not be offered or sold in the United States
absent registration or an applicable exemption from registration requirements.
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' Exemption # 82.516

T
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T2 APF ENERGY TRUST
(the "Trust™)

3

Instrument of Proxy

The undersigned holder of trust units ("Units") of the Trust hereby appoints Martin Hislop, Chief Executive Officer and
a director of APF Energy Inc. ("APF Energy") of the City of Calgary, in the Province of Alberta, or, failing him, Steven
Cloutier, Secretary, President, Chief Operating Officer and a director of APF Energy of the City of Calgary, in the
Province of Alberta, or instead of either of the foregoing, , as proxyholder of the undersigned, with full
power of substitution, to attend and act and vote for and on behalf of the undersigned at the Annual General and Special
Meeting (the "Meeting") of the Unitholders of the Trust, to be held on June 11, 2003, and at any adjournment or
adjournments thereof and on every ballot that may take place in consequence thereof to the same extent and with the
same powers as if the undersigned were personally present at the Meeting with authority to vote at the said
proxyholders’ discretion, except as otherwise specified below.

Without limiting the general powers hereby conferred, the undersigned hereby directs the said proxyholder to vote the
Units represented by this instrument of proxy in the following manner:

1. FOR [[] or WITHHOLD FROM VOTING FOR [] the selection of six (6) Directors of APF
Energy and to fix the number of Directors for the forthcoming year at six, as specified in the
Information Circular - Proxy Statement of the Trust dated May 12 , 2003;

2. FOR [] or WITHHOLD FROM VOTING FOR [ the appointment of
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, Chartered Accountants, as auditors of the Trust for the ensuing year
and to authorize the Board of Directors of APF Energy to fix the remuneration of the auditors;

3 FOR [] or AGAINST [] a resolution to approve the re-appointment of Computershare Trust
Company of Canada as trustee of the Trust for the ensuing year, as more particularly described in
the Information Circular — Proxy Statement of the Trust dated May 12 , 2003;

4, FOR [] or AGAINST {] a resolution approving and ratifying the issuance of rights under the
Trust Unit Incentive Rights Plan of the Trust, to the extent the rights were granted in excess of the
authorized maximum under the Plan, as more particularly described in the Information Circular —
Proxy Statement of the Trust dated May 12, 2003;

5. FOR [] or AGAINST [] a resolution approving the increase in the maximum number of Trust
Units issuable under the Trust Unit Incentive Rights Plan of the Trust, as more particularly
described in the Information Circular — Proxy Statement dated May 12, 2003;

6. FOR [ ] or AGAINST [] a special resolution to amend the royalty agreement between APF
Energy and Computershare Trust Company of Canada as trustee of the Trust, to delete certain
criteria relating to future acquisitions by APF Energy, as more particularly described in the
Information Circular — Proxy Statement dated May 12, 2003;

7. FOR [ or AGAINST [] a resolution ratifying, confirming and approving the implementation
by the Trust of a Unitholders’ Rights Plan, as more particularly described in the Information
Circular — Proxy Statement dated May 12, 2003;

8. FOR [] or AGAINST [ a special resolution to terminate the Unanimous Shareholder
Agreement between APT and the Trust;




9. At the discretion of the said proxyholders, upon any amendment or variation of the above matters
or any other matter that may be properly brought before the Meeting or any adjournment thereof in
such manner as such proxyholder, in such proxyholder's sole judgment, may determine.

This Instrument of Proxy is solicited by the management of APF Energy on behalf of the Trust, pursuant to
authority delegated to it by the Trust. The Units represented by this Instrument of Proxy will be voted and,
where the Unitholder has specified a choice with respect to the above matters, will be voted as directed above or,
if no direction is given, will be voted in favour of the above matters. Each Unitholder has the right to appoint a
proxyholder, other than the persons designated above, who need not be a Unitholder, to attend and to act for
him and on his behalf at the Meeting. To exercise such right, the names of the nominees of management should
be crossed out and the name of the Unitholder's appointee should be legibly printed in the blank space provided.

The undersigned hereby revokes any proxies heretofore given.

Dated this day of ,2003.

Signature of Unitholder

Name of Unitholder - (please print)
NOTES:

1. If the Unitholder is a corporation, its corporate seal
must be affixed or it must be signed by an officer or
attorney thereof duly authorized.

2. This form of proxy must be dated and the signature
hereon should be exactly the same as the name in
which the Units are registered. If this proxy is not
dated, it shall be deemed to bear the date on which it
was mailed.

3. Persons signing as executors, administrators, trustees,
etc., should so indicate and give their full title as such.

4. This instrument of proxy will not be valid and not be
acted upon or voted unless it is completed as outlined
herein and delivered to the attention of Computershare
Trust Company of Canada, Attention: Proxy
Department, 9" Floor, 100 University Avenue,
Toronto, Ontario M5J 2Y2 not less than 24 hours
before the time set for the holding of the Meeting or
any adjournment thereof. A proxy is valid only at the
meeting in respect of which it is given or any
adjournment(s) of that Meeting.




Exemption # 82-5160

MATERIAL CHANGE REPORT

Material Change Report under Section 146(1) of the Securities Act (Alberta), Section 75(2) of the
Securities Act (Ontario), Section 81(2) of the Securities Act (Nova Scotia), Section 67(1) of the Securities
Act (British Columbia), Section 84(1)(b) of the Securities Act (Saskatchewan), Section 73 of the
Securities Act (Quebec), Section 76(2) of the Securities Act 1990 (Newfoundland).

1. Reporting Issuer:
3
APF Energy Trust e
Address: 2100, 144 — 4" Avenue SW I

Calgary, Alberta T2P 3N4

2, Date of Material Change:

April 28, 2003

3. Publication of the Material Change:
News Release issued: April 24, 2003
Canada Newswire
4. Summary of Material Change:

APF Energy Inc. ("APF") has acquired all of the outstanding shares of Nycan Energy Corp.
("Nycan") in accordance with the offer of APF, APF Energy Trust and 1036655 Alberta Ltd.

(collectively, the "Offeror") to purchase all of the Common Shares of Nycan dated March 18,
2003 (the "Offer").

5. Full Description of Material Change:

On April 28, 2003, APF acquired 16,483,126 Common Shares of Nycan in accordance with the
Offer, representing approximately 99.5% of Nycan's Common Shares outstanding for $2.075 per
share. In addition, on April 29, 2003, APF sent a notice to all remaining shareholders of Nycan
pursuant to the compulsory acquisition provisions of the Business Corporations Act (Alberta) and
has paid to Nycan the consideration that APF would have had to pay if all holders of Common
Shares of Nycan had accepted the Offer. Accordingly, APF has become the holder of all the
outstanding Nycan Common Shares.

6. Reliance on Section 146(2) of the Securities Act, Alberta (or similar provisions of the other
jurisdictions where this report is being filed):

Not applicable.




7. Omiitted Information:
Not applicable.

8. Senior Officer:
Martin Hislop
Chief Executive Officer
APF Energy Inc.

2100, 144 - 4th Avenue S.W.
Calgary, Alberta T2P 3N4

9, Statement of Senior Officer:

The foregoing accurately discloses the material change referred to in this report.

DATED at Calgary, Alberta on the 29th day of April, 2003.

Per:

Signed "Martin Hislop"

Martin Hislop

Chief Executive Officer

APF Energy Inc., on behalf of
APF Energy Trust

IT IS AN OFFENCE UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT AND THE SECURITIES REGULATION FOR A
PERSON OR COMPANY TO MAKE A STATEMENT IN A DOCUMENT REQUIRED TO BE FILED
OR FURNISHED UNDER THE ACT OR THE REGULATION THAT, AT THE TIME AND IN THE
LIGHT OF THE CIRCUMSTANCES UNDER WHICH IT IS MADE, IS A MISREPRESENTATION.




Exemption # 82-5166

Computershar

530-8th Avenue S.W., Calgary, AB T2P 358 (403) 267-6800 Fax: (403) 267-6529

May 16, 2003

To: Alberta Securities Commission
British Columbia Securities Commission
The Manitoba Securities Commission
Office of the Administrator, New Brunswick
Securities Commission of Newfoundland
Nova Scotia Securities Commission
Ontario Securities Commission
Registrar of Securities, Prince Edward Island
Commission des valeurs mobiliéres du Quebec
Saskatchewan Securities Commission
The Toronto Stock Exchange

Dear Sirs:
Subject: APF Energy Trust

We confirm that the following material was sent by pre-paid mail on May 15, 2003 to the registered
holders of the subject trust units:

1. Notice of Meeting/Information Circular
2. Proxy

3. Supplemental Mail List Card

4, Proxy Return Envelope

In compliance with regulations made under the Securities Act, we are providing this material to you in
our capacity as trustee for the subject Trust Units.

Yours truly,

COMPUTERSHARE TRUST COMPANY OF CANADA

“Signed by”

Angie Bains

Assistant Trust Officer
Corporate Trust Department

cc: APF Energy Trust
Attention: Alan MacDonald




